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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profitand Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31.
2023, its loss including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs). as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
*Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

As more fully described in note 41 of Ind AS standalone financial statements, the comparative financial
statements of the Company for the corresponding year included in the financial statement have been
restated to give the effect to the adjustments arising from the Business Combination of Bigfoot Retail
Solutions Private Limited and Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions Pvt. Ltd.. wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company. with the Company. Further. the current year financial statements. of such subsidiaries
upto the period described in aforesaid note have also been audited by another auditors. The independent
auditor’s reports on financial statements of these entities have been furnished to us by the Management
and our conclusion on the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures in respect of
such subsidiaries are based solely on the report of such auditors and procedures performed by us as
stated in paragraph basis of opinion above.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on daily basis.

(¢) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(F) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above:

—

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 27 to this report:

(g

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023:

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule T of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements:

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. , no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantce. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v.  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1. 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Assocfates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrati

Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGSF4290

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 27. 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) All Property. Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous
year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three vears which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended March 31, 2023.

(¢) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of mventory at monthly intervals during
the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management
is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were
not noticed on such physical verification. There was no inventory lying with the third parties.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year the Company has provided loan to its subsidiaries as follows:

Particulars _ Amount
- (Rs in million)
Aggregate amount granted/provided during the year 518.92

- Subsidiaries Companies

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases 518.92
- Subsidiaries Companies
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(vi)

(b) The terms and condition of loans of Rs 518.92 Mn granted during the year by the Company to

its subsidiaries and balance outstanding as at balance sheet date Rs 518.92 Mn are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(¢) In respect of loan of Rs 518.92 Mn granted by the Company to its subsidiaries. repayable on

demand, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayment or receipts are in accordance with that.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans eranted to companies, firms,

limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(¢) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year.

(f) As disclosed in note 6(v) to the financial statements. the Company has granted loans or

advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment to companies. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Of these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of
loans granted to promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Amount
(Rs in million)

Aggregate amount of loans granted during the year to

subsidiaries 518.92
- Repayable on demand
Percentage of loans to the total loans 100%

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax. provident fund. employees’ state

insurance, income-tax. cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The
provisions relating to sales tax. service tax. duty of customs. duty of excise and value added tax
are not applicable to the Company.
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, as at the March 31, 2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) The dues of income-tax have not been deposited on account of any dispute. are as follows:

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Name  of | Nature of | Amount Period to | Forum where the | Remarks,
the statute | the dues (Rs in | which the | dispute is pending | if any
million) amount
relates
Income Tax | Income Tax 1.65 AY 2018- | Commissioner of | NA
Act, 1961 19 Income Tax
Appeals
Income Tax | Income Tax 0.8 AY 2018- | Commissioner of | NA
Act, 1961 19 [ncome Tax
Appeals
Income Tax | Income Tax 0.03 AY 2018- | Commissioner of | NA
Act, 1961 19 Income Tax
Appeals
Total of income tax 2.48

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company. no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries and associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(D) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence. the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(b) The Company has complied with provisions of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of the preferential allotment of equity shares raised during the year. The amount
raised, have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised except for idle/surplus
funds amounting to Rs 2,550 Mn which were not required for immediate utilization and which
have been gainfully invested in liquid investments payable on demand. The maximum amount
of idle/surplus funds invested during the year was Rs 2.550 Mn, of which Rs 2.550 Mn was
outstanding at the end of the year.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year. no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed
by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government. The requirement to appoint Cost and Secretarial auditor is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore. the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act.
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause
3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence. the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs. 377.55 Mn. In the
immediately preceding financial year. the Company had incurred cash losses amounting to Rs.
110.82 Mn.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements. ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities. other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For 8.R. Batliboi & Aspociates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrati

rtner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGSF4290

umber: 101049W/E300004

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BIGFOOT RETAIL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private (“the Company™) as of March 31. 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Com panies Act. 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
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statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & AfRotiates LLP
Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Regjstrg#

umber: 101049W/E300004

jay Bachchani
artner
Membership Number: 400419

UDIN: 234004 19BGTGSF4290

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023



Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(AL wmonnts in Bs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particul: N A% At Niich 31 08 At
ARl Roge March 31,2023 ¥ i;:::lnte:i") % April 1,2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment i 162.03 80.59 16.97
Capital work in progress 3 49.27 - -
Goodwill 4 51777 571.77 -
Uther Intangible assets 4 128.22 167.34 022
Right-of-use assats 4a 889.46 352.65 2529
Investments in associates 5 - 111.60 -
Financial assets
{1} Investments 6(i) 13,056.13 T98.47 0.05
(i) Oiher financial assets 6(vi} 53132 9,893.88 1,086.15
Non-current Tax Assets (net) 8 17.14 19.47 -
Other non-current assets g 1.98 11.99 -
Tetal non-curvent assels 15.413.32 12,013.76 1,128.48
Current assels
Inventories 7 1Z13 873 222
Financinl assets
(1} Investments 6(i) 208.20 55.04 -
(it) Trade receivables 6(ii) 626,98 443.28 140.75
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents a(iii) 489,08 180.71 66.43
(v} Bank balances other than (i) above &(ivy 75.99 63.16 T39.78
(v) Luans 6(v) 518.92 - -
(i) Other financial Assels Givi) 7,223.20 3,208.78 283.85
Current Tax Assets (net) 8 20571 8347 24.80
Uther current assets 9 168.02 107.88 19.67
Total current assets 9,528.23 4,151.05 1,277.51
“Total assets MINI.SS I&lﬁd.sl 2,405.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital e 589.96 567.78 384.66
Share Consideration pursuant 1o Merger 40 0.12 a1z -
Other eguity 1) 18,918.42 13,404.39 906.74
Tounl equity 19,508.50 13,972.29 1,291.40
LIABILITES
MNen-curevent liabilities
Finnucial liabil
( 1} Lease Liabilities in T58.67 152.05 16.75
Provisions 13 37.89 25.03 15.58
Total non-current liabilities 796.56 177.08 32,33
Current liabilities
Finaneinl liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12{1) 1,718.08 - 63.64
(ii) Lease Liabilities 30 153.46 208.58 8.02
tiii} Trade payables 12(ii)
{a) Total vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 66,55 2517 347
b} Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,315.38 858.67 519.05
{iv) Other Financial Liabilities 124iii) 598.64 376.19 10429
Provisions 13 43.96 25.56 8.56
Other current habilities 14 T40.42 521.27 375.23
Total current Habilities 4,636.49 2,0015.44 1,082,26
Total equity and liabilities 24,941.558 l&l 64.81 2!405.99

I'he accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements 147
* Hefer note 40 ’

As per our report of even date
For 3.R Batlibol & Associates L
Chartered Accountants

Safgay Whchchani
Parthdr

Membership No, 400419

Place  Gurugram
Dae - Seprember 27, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

Saahil Goel Gn
Director Director
DIN: 05106685 DIN: 03595876

@/\\f
Deepa Kapoor
Company Secretary

anmay

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 27, 2023
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Chief Financial Officer




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Particulars Naotes F;;::hy;: ‘rze{:'l;l;d M:rch 31,31;22
Income
Revenue from Operations 15 8,407.48 6,01847
Other income 16 392,81 24830
Total income (1) 8,800.29 6,266.77
Expenses
Cost of Merchant Solutions 17 6,394.32 4,738.10
Purchase of traded goods 18 41.58 12.82
Increase in inventories of traded goods 19 (7.79) (2.12)
Employee benefits exp 20 1,972.33 1,170.49
Finance costs 23 92.90 12.45
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 246.54 62.11
Other expenses 22 1,345.89 823.08
Total Expenses (I1) 10,085.77 6,816.93
(Loss)Profit before exceptional items and tax (1[I=1-11) (1,285.48) (550.16)
Exceptional items (1V) 24.0 (356.28) -
(Loss)/Profit before tax (V=I11+1V) (1,641,76) {550.16)
Tax expense
Current tax -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods (0.53) .
Deferred tax - (0.80)
Total Tax Expense (V) (0.53) (0.80)
{Loss)/Profit for the year (VII=V-VI) (1,641.23) (549.35)
Other Comprehensive Income/{ Loss): 242
{a) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(i) Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (2.02) (2.82)
{it) Gain/(loss) on sale of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCI (19.90) .
{ni} Changes in fair value of equity & preference mstruments carried at FVTOCI (54.75) -
Total Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year (VILI) {76.67) (2.82)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (IX=VII+VIII) (1,717.90) (552.17)
(Loss)Earnings per equity share: 25
Basic EPS (InRs.) (813.35) (324.90)
Diluted EPS (In Rs.) (813.35) (324.90)

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements: 1-47
* Refer note 40

As per our report of even date ,
For S.R. Butliboi & Associntes LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049,

jay Bachchani
Partner
Membership NP' 400419

Place : Gurugram
Date ' September 27, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

Saahil Goel
Director
DIN: 05106685

(S

Deepa Kapoor
Company Secretary

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 27, 2023

Gautam Kapoor
Director
DIN: 03595876

X\
W
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Bigfoal Retuil Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Standalone Statement of Chanyes in Equity for the yeur ended March 31, 2023
(AN amounis in Rs. Milllons, unless atherwie atated)

Ao Equity share eaphtal (Refer note 10)

Purtlenlary Number Amunt

Asat April 1, 2021 356,246 3.56
Adid. Shares isswed dureg dee year 32115 003
Lass: Buvebuck of shores dunng the vear (21,830 (22
As ut March 31, 2022 366,529 338
Adid Shares waed dunng the year 45,574 096

Ax af March 31, 2023

62,103 4.33

C lsurily C Cumul P Shures (Refer note 10)
L - i i Serivs A Series B Serles Bl
o > e Number Ampunt Number Amount Number Amount
Asat April 1, 2021 0,781 0.4y 191,445 6J.58 468,351 166.28
Add: Shares iesved duritig the vear = = * i = =
As at March 31, 2022 20,781 0o 191345 63,58 468,341 166.28
Sudd: Shares igsued during the year 3 5 5 - £t 5
As ut Murch 31, 2023 TR (%] 191,545 354 4,68.381 166.28
dcadi . il b - Series C1 Serfes C2 Serles ©3
" etk 7 g i Nummber Amivunt Nuber Anieunt Nutnber Amount
Asat April 1, 2021 146,253 4142 94,908 REA | H1,395 28,90
Add Shanes ssoed dunng the vear . . - - - -
As at March 31, 2012 146,253 H7.42 94,964 3310 81,305 W90
Aded: Shores wswed duting e vear . # = = - -
Anat Murch 31, 2023 146,253 §7.42 94,968 Bn #1,395 28,50
C — i " - Series DI Serles E Serles E1
22 = e Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Asat April 1, 2021 - - - A 3 =
Add Shansy issued dunng the yesr 157,148 5434 349,207 12397 - -
As at March 31, 2022 1,67,148 59.34 349,207 1737 - =
Add: Sharey issued durig the year - - - - Ta 641 26.50
Less: converten it equity share eapital during the yeur (4641 {26.50)
As at Mareh 31,2023 167,148 5934 3,49,207 11397 - =
Ci lsoril; it fe shurea "CCCPS! Serler ki
3 Number Amuunt
Asut Aprll 1, 2021 - =
Add Shares ssswed duning the year =
As al March 31, 2022 - -
Audd: Sliases ssaued durnng e year 59,193 2un
Az at M'alrch 31,2023 59,793 2123
Oiher Equity
Attributuble tw the equity holders of the company
Reserve und Surplus
Particulurs Securities Shitre Bused Cupital General Retained enmnings | Items of Other Comprehensive Total
Premium | Puyment Reserve | Redemptian Reverve Income
Reserve
Balance wx wt April 1, 2021 1.393.52 L12 - - (488.00) = 30674
{LossyPrafit for tha vear = 1349.35) (549.35)
Other Compireliensive Income/{Luss): -
(i 1 Insshigal definedd bepefil plans - - - - - {2.82 {2182
Tatal Connprehensive Incomel(Lasy) 139352 122 = = (1,837.36) (282) 35457
Add: Feeuritivs presiam on issue of share eapital 14,012.72 - B - 1401272
Less: Utilizaton against buyback of equity shares {74269 - - - - (74269
Less: Tax pand on buyback of equity shares (73.02) - - - - {17307
Lasiai: Bxpenses on buvback of equity shages (L2 - - - - - (120
Adel: Shose hased paymient expense (Refer ste 31 - 32381 - - - - 32181
Legs. Trunsaction cost associatie with issuanee of shares (Sl - - - - (369.79)
Add: Resvrve ercated on buvbhoek ol shores - - 0.22 - - :
Bulunce as at March 31, 2022 14,119.54 32503 022 B {2.82) 13,404.39
(Loss}Protin for the year . - . - (1,641.23)
Orther Compreheasive Ineomef{ Luss): -
i R tmensuirement (loss)gain an detined benelit plans - 2.02) {2.02)
Gannfhoss yon sale of equity & preference instruments carricd at FVTOCT - - - - - {19.90): (19.9)
188} Chetiges in fir value ol yuity & preference mstnments carried st FYTOC] - - - - - (54.75 {34.7:
Tutul Campreheasive Incomed{Laoss) 41154 2503 022 - (2,678.81) m-ﬂ-ﬂ— 11,685.48
Add Seevmiies premium o tssue of share eagsisal 6372495 - - - - - 637285
Addd: Share based payment expense {Refer nate 313 . A5H A - - 458,60
Akl Shane bused payment exspense sllocited L subsidiury comganies [Iefer note 61 40035 - i - - 400,38
ess. Transfer o General Reserve on ESOPs Izpscd‘lmul e var - {25.08) - 2508 - - -
iBulnlu'r ay ut arch 31, 2023 M 2,492.49 1,158.93 .22 1508 267881} (79.49)) 18918.42

Tl ieeomivins drg nites ane an idegral past o,
A per our ropur, uleven date

For S.R. Batlibui & Assuciates LLP,
Charterod
1CAT Finm

finaetal statements 47
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Company Sewnetary.
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Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL201 1 PTC225614
Stundalone Statement of cash fow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Bs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 M;‘;‘:me':n

A) Operating Activities
{Loss)Profit before Tax {1,641.76) (550.16)
Adj 1o ile (1 profit before tax to net cash Nows
Deprecintion of Property. plant and equipment 67.41 21.67
A ion aof ible nsseis { including p | ilgms) 159.13 10.30
Deprecintion of nght-of-use assels 140,00 30.14
Provision for nap i valug of' | {Excep ! liems) 236.27 -
Bad debd writien off 084 2.06
Provision for Doubtiul Recoverable 43.58 8.30
Fair value gain'floss) on Mutual fund investments at fair value through profit or loss 2.23 {0.42)
Recoverable wwrintes off 12.86 0.55
Provision for doubtful debls 165.28 5563
Share based payment expense 458.60 323.80
Imerest expense on Borrowings 46,22 3.08
Interest on lease liabilities 45.74 9.03
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment (0.02) -
Rent waiver on lense liabilities - (LBO)
Interest Incomye on Nived deposits al smortised cost (361.57) (230.68)
Interest on loan 1o subsidiarics (20.71) -
Interest on Income tax refund (2.68) (1.03)
Interest income an Unwinding of discount on secunty deposits paid (2.49) (047}
Property, Plan: and Equipment and Intangible assets writlen ofl - 041
Operating {Loss)/Profit before working capital chanpes (651.05) (319.65)
Muovements in working capital:
{Increase)Decrease in Inventories (3.40) (0.64)
(Increase)lDecrease in Trade and other receivables (349.82) (275.79)
(Increasel Decrense in Other financial asscts (252.26) (171.26)
{Inereasc)Decrease in Other Assels (73.04) (88.21)
Increased{Decrease) in Trade Payables 408.09 273.16
Increase/(Decrense) in Other financial Habilitics 22245 120.05
Increase/(Deerease) in Provisions 29.24 2045
1 Dy in vther liabiliti 219.15 135.56
Carsh Mlow from/(used in) operations {360.63) (306.32)
Income taxes paud (net) (11670 (54.40)
Net cash Mows fromyi din) i tivities (A} (477.34) (360.72)

B} lovesting Activities
Cash Now From investing nctivities
Purchase of propenty, plant and (including other i ible assels and capital advances) (308.22) (122.30)
Sale/Disposal of property, plant and equipment {including otber imangible asscts and capital sdvances) 013 0.76
fvesument i assouiaies - (111,60)
[nvestment L subsidianies (8,173.67) (759.23)
Purchuse consideration paid for business eombination - (741.90)
livestiment in Other entitics (B2.44) (39.20)
Advance Paid lor sequisition of shares (300.00) -
Pureliase of Mutual Funds {155.38) (0.00)
Interest Received on deposits with banks 284.70 65.85
Loan given to subsidianics {518.92) -
Interest on loon 1o subsidianies 207 -
Iivcstiment in Bank deposits (nct) 5,015,594 (10.685.14)
Net eash Nows used in investing activities (B3) (3.332.73) (12,392.74)

€. Cash Mlow from Nnancing activities
Cash Flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issug of share capital 2123 18334
Proceeds [rom Sceuritics premimm oa issuc of shares 257344 12,726,05
Buvback of equity shares - (0.22)
Proceeds from borrowings 1,718.08 {63.64)
Payment of lease linbilitics (102.34) (24.48)
Payment o interest on kease liabilities (45.74) {9.03)
Interest Paid on Borrowings (46.22) (3.05)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities { C) 4,118.45 12,808.98
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 308.39 5553
Cash and cagh cquivalents at the beginning of the year 180.71 6643
Inerease in Cash and eash equivalent pursuant to Business combination - 58.76
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 489,10 180.71
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cashon hand 0.01 0,09
With banks - on current account 3843 14.9%
With banks - On current accounis for Amount payable, colleeted on behall of the customers 430,64 165,64
Total cnsh and cash equivalents |Refer note Giiii)] 489.08 180.71

The accompanying notes ane an integral part of the standalone fimancial statements. |47
* Refer note 40

As per our report of cven date ]

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
1cAl

Place - Gurugram
Date  Scplember 27, 2023

nrtner
Membership No, 400419
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Sanhil Goel
Director
DIN: 05106685

0%
Deepa Kapoor

Company Sceretary

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 27, 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

4
Gautaly Kgpoor
Dircctor
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Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to §
(Al amounts in Rs, M

1

23

b)

Jalone financial stat for the year ended March 31, 2023
ns, unless otherwise stated,

Corporate Information

Bigloot Retal Solutions Private Linuted (“Shiprocket” o “the Company”) is a private limited company incorporated on September 28, 2011, under the relevant provisions of

erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 Shiprocket 15 an e-commerce enablement platform powerng dircct commerce, Shiprocker helps small businesses, retail brands, direct-to-
1 . and soctal retmlers scale through its technology stack

The Standalone financial have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on September 27, 2023,

Summiary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These dalone fi al have been prepared in } with the requi of Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013 (“the Act”), read with of the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015, a5 ded and p i Jui of Division I of Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS pliant Schedule 111, as applicable to the falone fi il

PFursuant 1o the C ies (Indian Ac ing Standard) Second A | Rules, 20135, the Company has adopted March 31, 2023 as reporting date for first time adoption
of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) and consequently April 01, 2021 as the date for prep of standatone financial The standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, are the first dal. ials, prepared in i with Ind-AS. Up to the financial vear ended March 31, 2022, the
Company prepared its lalone fi ial in d: with ing dards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (A ) Rules, 2014 (“previous GAAP” or “Indian GAAP™). For preparing these standalone fi ial , opening balance sheet was
prepared as at April 1, 2021 ie the date of transition to Ind-AS. The figures for the previous periods and for the year ended March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021 have been
restated, ped and reclassified, wh quired to comply with Ind-AS and Schedule Il ta the Companies Act, 2013. (Refer note 41 for details)

These dalone fi | have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain fi 1 which are | at
furr values, wherever applicable, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below,

This note provides a list of the sigmfi ac pol fopted in the preg of these dalone fi ial . These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presenied, unless otherwise stated

The standalone financial statements are presented m Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the dal fi ial and notes have been rounded off 1o the
nearest mallions, within two decimals, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of standslone financial in conformity with the principles of Ind AS requires the to make judg i and ptions that
effect the reported of L EXp . assels and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period, Although these estimates
are based on the 's best knowledge of current events and actions, inty about these ptions and esti could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The estimates and underlying ptions are d on an ongoing basis. Revisions to ing esti are gnised in the period in which the estimate is revised if

the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

In partieular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and eritical judgements in applying aceounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the anised in the dalone fi ial are disclosed in note No. 26.

Business acquisition and Goodwill

Busi bi are d for using the acquisition method or pooling of interest method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred d at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any trolling in the acquiree. For each busi bination, the C

elects whether to the i in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The Company determines that 1t has acquired a | when the acg | set of activities and assets include an input and a substantive process that together significantly
contrtbute 1o the ability Lo create owtputs The acquired process 15 considered substantive if it 15 critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired
melude an « i ki with the y skulls, k ledge, or experience Lo perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing

outputs and s consrdered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, ar delay in the ability to continue producing outputs,

Acquisition method

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all | binations, The iderati ferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:
{1) fuir values of the assets transforred;

(1) liabalities mewrred to the former owners of the acquired business:

(iti) equity interests 1ssued by the Company; and

(1v) fair value of any asset or lability resulting from a contingent consideration arcangement.

The excess of the

(i) consideration transferred;

(i1) amount ef any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

(ii) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fuir value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill, If those smounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the b quired, the diff is recognised in other comprehensive income and lated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the
underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase,




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN:

U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Standalone fi inl st for the year ended March 31,2023

<

d)

Al amounis in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Companies cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether

other assets or habilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been all d is tested for impai or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired

Pooling of lnterest method
Ind AS 103, Business Combuwations, prescribes sigmficantly different ace i for b b which are not under common control and those under commen
control. Business combinations mvolving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method

The poohing of interest method 15 considered to imvolve the following.
1} The assets and hatlities of the combining entities are reflected at their carmyine amounts.
i) Mo adjustments are made to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilines. The Dnly adjustments thal are made are ro f
m] The ﬁnant:lal |nt’orrnauon in respect of prior years should be restated as if the business 1 had d from the beginning of the p ding year in the dal
1 of the actual date of the business combination.
iv) The identity of the reserves has been preserved and appear in the financial information of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial information
of the transferor.
v) The difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve.

Curvent versus Non-current classification

es in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it is:

The Company presents assets and liab
i) Exp d to be realised or i led to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

11) Held primarily for the purpose of wading

in} It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

1v) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A hability is current when:

i) 1t 15 expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

i) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional nght to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afer the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
The operating cyele 1s the time betweaen (he acquisition of assels for p ing and therr real m cush and cash equivalents. The Company has
as its operating cvele

P

twelve months

Foreign Currencies

Items included in the Standal Financial § are d usmg the y of the primary economic environment in which the enmy operates ('the I'uncuonal
currency’). The Company’s Standalone Financial 8 are p I in Indian Rupee {*the functional currency’} which is also the Company's functional and g
currency.

Transactions and balances
T ions n foreign ies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the exchange rates at the date of the transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities d inated in foreign 125 are lated at the functional v spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exch diffe arising on settl or ! of y items are recognised in profit and loss with the exception of the following:

1) In the dalone fi | that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e, dalone financial when the foreign operation is a branch),

such exchange diff are d imtially in OCL These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit and loss on disposal of the net i

1) Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange diff on those y items are also recorded in OCL

Naon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign are lated using the exch rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-

monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
lation of non. v items d at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e, translation

differences on ttems whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Company financial inst {recorded at far value through P&L ar OCL) at farr value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value s the price thar would be received 1o sell an asset or pard 1o rnsfer 2 liability i an orderly transaction between market particip at the date. The
fmr value measurement 15 based on the | p that thet on to sell the asset or transfer the liabihity 1akes place either

1} b the principal market for the asser or labihty, or
1} In the absence of a principal marke, n the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the

Company The fair value of an asset or a hatulity 1s d using the 1ons that market partic would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that markel
p P act in their best interest.
A fair value ofa fi ial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to genesate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or

by selling it 1o another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuati hniques that are appropriate in the ci and for which sufficient data are available o fair value, imising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable nputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is d or disclosed in the standalone financial are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i} Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities.

i1} Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

11} Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL201IPTC225614

Notes to Standal fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al nmounts in Rs. Millions, nnless otherwise stated)

For assets and liabilines that are enised i the dal fi 18] stat on a ing basis, the Company d ines whether fers have d bet
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided on Ihe basis of nature of transaction and complexity

invelved. Selection criteria include market } ledge, depend and whether professional standards are d.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be d or re d as per the Company’s
accounting policies, For this analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation byagree’mg the mformamm in the valuati 1o

and other relevant documents. A change i fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with relevan | sources tod ine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclasures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

f Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less lated dey ion and acc lated ympai loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equi are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company d them ly based on their spu:lfc
useful lives. Likewise, when n major mspection 15 performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and Juip as a repl if the

criveria are satsfied. All other repair and mai costs are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any,

On wmnsition ta Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value af all of us property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2021 measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carmyng value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment. Depreeration on all property plant and equipment are provided on a
written down value based on the estmated useful life of the asset, wiieh s as follows:

Category of asset Useful Lives (Years)

Office Equipment 8

Furmiture and Fixtures 10

Computers 3

Mobiles 8

Plant and Machinery 10

Elcetrical Installations 10

L hald i are ised over lifie based on lease period

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equip and adopted useful lives based on "s technical

of their respective economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equip are reviewed at each financial year end

and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets. Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully
depreciated in the year of purch

An item of propenty, plant and equipment and apy sigmificant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no flture ic benefits are expected from its
|

use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset {caleulated as the difference b the net disp P ds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
meluded in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

B} Intangible assets
Govdwill rep the cost of acquured us estiblished a1 the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the
{enufiable assets, habnlities and ¢ lalshities less accumulated amparment losses, (Fany Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances
indicate that the imphed fair value of goodwill s less than the carrying anount

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on imitial recognition at cost. The cost of intangibile assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition,

Vidid Tatad 11 3 ey

Following |rnl|al recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less any and losses. I
Tuds lised devel costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the ym.r in which the e.xpendnure is incurred.

The usel‘u! hves of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets (other than those acquired in busi bination) with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated vseful economic life being 3
years. All Intpngible assets (other than goodwill) are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation year
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes in the expected useful life or the

P i pattern of ¢ ption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation year or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms

part of carrying value of another asset,

Ani ible asset is d onised upon disposal (i, at the date the recipient obtans control) or when no future ic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
wains or losses arising from d ition of an ible asset are d as the difference bet the net disposal p ds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in busi bination, include technology platforms, Customer relationships and non pete which are amortised on a straight line basis over
their estimated usefisl hfe which 15 as follows

Nature of asset Useful Lives {Years)

Technology platform 7

Customer relationships 7
Mon-compete fees 3
3

Sofiwares
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h)

Leases

On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Company has adopted modified ive approach and has ised Right of use asset and lease liability on initial application
at the present value of the ining lease pay , di i using the Cmnpany s incremental borrowing rate at as at April 01,2021,

The Company at meeption whether a is, or ins, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified usset fora

period of time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single rec and approuch for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease
liabilines 1o make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the nght to use the enderlying assets

i) Right of use assets

The C y T right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of: assels are iat
cost, less any lated depi 1on and lated i losses, and ad  for any of lease habilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease linbilittes recogmised, inittal direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on o straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the esumated useful lives of the assets.

“If awnership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the ise of a purchase option, depreciation is 1 using the
estimated useful life of the asset

The right-of-use assets are also subject 1o mparment, Refer to the accounting policies in section (v} Impairment of non-financial assets.”

ii} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recogmises lease habilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term, The lease
paymenis include fixed p {including 1 sub fixed | less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be pmd under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the ise price of a purchase option bly certain 1o be exercised by the
Comp and p of p ies for inating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exe.mlsm;, the option to terminate. \-"anab[e lease payments that do not

depend onan index or o rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are s d to produce in ies} in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily d inable. Afier the date, the amount of lease liabilities 15 increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to d such lease pay ) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases
The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its properties (i e, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain & purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventonies comprise of mainly packaging material which are valued at lower of cost and nes ble value, Cost includes the cost of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
ble from tas awtl Jand other cost incurred 1n bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is d ined on first in first out basis.

Net reahzable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of bust . less esti d costs of ! and those necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue primarily stems from its innovative merchant solutions deeply rooted in cutti d hnology. These h lutions revolve around shipping,

fulfilment and conversion technology, serving as a bridue connecunyg retailers, carriers, and consumers on both national and international fronts. The Company's advanced
techinology plays a pivoral rofe in powening shipping and fulfilment for SMEs, D2C retailers, and soctal commerce sellers, while also offering a comprehensive technology

stack for retailers to seamlessly integrate their shopping websites or their other channels for effictent 1 tory and order

Within the realm of merchant solutions, the Company generates revenue through a range of technology- drwen services. This includes one-time setup fees, subscription
charges, platform fees and value-added services, as well as revenue derived from shipping and logisti | pay and state-of-the-art fulfilment
solutions, The company’s principal method of charging its revenue is on a pay- I'or -use model i.e. the pany ises its products or services on a per-transaction basis.
These technology-driven services are strategically designed to emp and op hants' use of the tech-based platform, ulti | ituting a significant portion of
the Company's overall revenue,

Arrangements with merchants do not provide the merchants with lhe right to take ion of the soft pporting the Company’s hosting platform at any time and are
therefore accounted for as service . The Company m depict the transfer of promised serwces to its customers in an amount that reflects the

consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in cxchan e for those services by applying the following steps:
+Identify the contract with a customer

+Identify the performance cbligations in the contract

~Determing the transaction price

+Allocate the transaction price and

+Recognize revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company follows the guidance provided in IND AS 115 R from C with C for d ining whether the Company is the principal or an agent in
arrangements with customers that involve another party that contributes to providing a specified service to a customer. In these i , the Company d ines whether it
has promsed to provide the specified service itself (as principal) or to arrange for the specified service to be provided by another party (as an agent). This determination
depends on the facts and of each arrang:

GST collected from | and ito go authorifies are excluded from revenue

The Company determines the price I‘or cach perfcrmnnce obhganon based on observable slsnda!one selling pruc&s\ Standalone selling prices are determined considering
pricing objectives, market condi 2 p size, d 3 . price lists, and go-to-market strategy. This determination
invelves liati and pp i Changes in Lo -to-market strategies may lead to adjustments in standa]one selling prices. Payment is generally received upon

vaienmg, with payment terms varving by contract type but usunlly requiring payment within 30 days of the invoice date. The company also allows its merchants to maintan
advanees. The contracts do not involve sigmficant financimg components when there are tinung differences between revenue recogmition, mvoicing, and payment.
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k)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of poods i5 recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The Company

considers whether there are otlier promises in the that are sef perft bligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated, In

determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant fi i I s, }
ideration, and deration payable to the customers (if any).

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right 1o receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Interest

Interest income is d when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and amount of income can be measured reliably, Interest income is

recognized using the effective interest method.
Contract balances
The Policy for Contract balances i.e contract assets, trade receivables and contracr liabilities is as follows:

Conteact assets
A contract asset 15 the night to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the cusiomer {which consist of unbilled ). If the Company performs by ferring
services 1o a customer before the pays consideration or before pay i5 due, & assel is gnised for the earned ideration that is ditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Campany’s right to an amount of d that is d | {i.e, only the passage of time is required before p of the id
15 due), Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in fi i ~imitial recognition and sub

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received ideration (or an amount of consideration is due)} from the
Ifa pays sderation before the Company fers services to the a liability is recognised when the pay is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as when the Company perft under the

Employee benefits
Provident fund & National Pension Scheme

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and national pension scheme { NPS) is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund/NPS. The Company recognizes ibution payable to the provident fund scheme/NPS as an expense, when an employee renders
the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for te, a reduction in future pay or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gaims and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the
bakance sheet with a carresponding debit or credit to retamed earnings through OCH in the year in wiich they occur Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Past service costs are recogmised m profit and loss on the earlier of

1) The date of the plan amendment or curtmlment, and

11} The date that the Company recognises related restructuning cosis

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
as an expense tn the statement of profit and loss:

1} Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

1) Net interest expense

Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected 1o be utilized within the next 12 months, {s treated as short-term employee benefit, The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused 1 that has lated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes expected cost
of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,

Short-term

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the pericd in which the employees
render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The labilities are | d as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid 1o the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961 and the Income Comp and Discl Standards ("ICDS") enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current
tax items are recogmised m correlation to the underlying rransacuion either in OC or direetly in equity. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in
the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax pard and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the
asset and lability en a net basis
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Deferrved taxes
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temp difle t the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date Deferred tax liabilities are recogmscd for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) In respect of taxable wmyg v diffi i wath m 11 subsid and associntes, when the tmung of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it 15 probable that the remy v diff will not reverse 10 the foreseeable fuwre
Deferred 1ax assets are f for all deduetibl porary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against wilich the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except;

i} When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductibl diffe arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a ion that is not a ¢
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither Il\e aoc.ounlmg profit nor taxable profit and loss

4

ii} In respect of deductibl di f¥e tated with i in subsidiaries and i deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary diffarencewill reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the defermed tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 1 at each reporting date and are gnised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and Liabilitics are mensured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset s realised or the liability is sertled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if' a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority

Share based payments

Employees of the Company receive remuneration i the form of share-based pay , whereby employees render services a5 consideration for equity instruments (equity-
settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactiens 1s determined by the fur value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is ised, together with a corresponding i in share-based | (SBP) reserves in equity, over the year in which the performance andfor service
conditions are fulfilled in empl benefits exp Th-.- lati ised for equity- setlled transactions at each repnrllng date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting year has expired and the Cornpany s best esnmate of the number of equity i that will ulti y vest. The of profit and loss
expense or credit for a year rep the m p gnised as at the beginning and end of that year and is recognised in employee benefits

Service and nen-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met
15 assessed as pan of the Company’s best estimate of the aumber of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market p ditions are reflected within the grant
date far value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an inted service requi are idered to be non-vesting conditions. Nonvesting conditions

are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest b non-market perft and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market
or nen-vesting condition, the transactions are treated a5 vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/for serviee conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified, the mini gnised is the exp had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met An additional is ised for any modification I.'hal increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to

the employee as measured at the date of modification

For lled options, the p made to the employee shall be accounted for as a deduction from equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of the
equity of the Company, d &t the cancellation date Any such excess from the fair value of equity i shall be ised as an exp
The dilutive effect of ding opuons s refl d as add | share dilution 1n the computation of diluted earnings per share

Segment reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108, § Reporting, S are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM') decides about

resource allocation and reviews performance, Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

The Company has identified only one reportable busi ement as it deals mainly in merchant solutions.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dwiding the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting prefe dividends and
attributable texes) by the weighted average number of equity and compulsorily convertible pref shares fing during the period For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the oblipation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The exp relating to a p

is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Il‘lhe effect of the time value of money is malennl provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When
2 is used, the i in the sion due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent labilities

Conti liability is & possible obligation that anises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company, or is & present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because either it is not probable
that arl outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obl or & reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.
C liabilities are disclosed and not « ised

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity,
i} Financial assets

The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories -

* Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss)
* Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value except for Trade receivables which are initially dat ion price. Ts 1on costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets {other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets,
a5 appropriate, on initial

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of fi ial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement ;

For purposes of subseq i ial assets are classified in three categ
(i) Atamortized cost

(11) At fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL™)

(i1} At fair valye through other comprehensive income (“FYTOCI")- Equity Instruments

Atamortized cost

A 'debt instrumient’ is measured at the amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels for collecting contractual cash flows and the
asset's contractual cash flows represent Sole Payment of Principal and Interest ("SPPI") This category is the most rel to the Company. After initial such
i | assets are subsequently i at ized cost using the elective interest rate ("EIR") method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discount the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial anstrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets. When calculating the EIR the Company esti the expected cash
flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments The EIR amortization is mecluded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairmient are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

ALFVTOCT

A financial assets 1z subsequently measured at FVTOCHif 1t 15 held within a business modal whose obyjective ts achieved by both collecting contraciual cash flows and selling
financial assets and | terms of the | assets grve nise on specified date to cash flows that are SPPI en the principal amount ding. All equity in

in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Co-rlpnny las made an irrevocable election to present 1n other prehensive income all subseq hanges in the fair
value, The Company makes such election on an instr by basis. The ¢lassification 1s made on mitial Teoogmhon and is irrevocable. If the Company decides to
classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 1zed in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of i H , the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the

FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and loss.

AtFVTPL
FVTPL s a residual category. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCL s classified as at FVTPL

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash llows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses ("ECL") model for and gnition of impai loss on the following fi ial
asset and credit risk exposure

* Financial assets measured at amortized cost,

+ Finaneial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive mcome (FVTOCT),

The Company follaws “simplilied ap; h" for g of loss all on trade receivables. Under

the simplified approach. the Company does not track changes in eredit nsk Rather, it recognizes impaitment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the time of initial
revenue recognition The Company uses o provision matnx to determime imp loss all on the p lio of trade receivables. The provision matnx is based on the
mistonically observed default rates over the expected Wt of vanous categones of trade receivables and these are updated and changed based on forward locking estimates at
every rep date. For rec of impairment loss on other financial assels and nisk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in

the credin nsk sinee imnal recogmition. IF eredit nsk has not mereased sgmificantly, | 2-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL 15 used. If, w subsequent period, credit quakity of the mstrument improves such that there 15 no longer & significant merease w credit risk since
intial itiom, then the Company reverts to loss all based on 12 months ECL.
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Financial liabilities

ial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at intial recognition as financial liabilities at far value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable
costs. The Company's financial liabilivies include loans and borrowings meluding bank overdrafi, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables.

The of fi il liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables
These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and
other payables are presented as current linbilines unless payment 15 not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Fi 1al hiabilities are classified as held for trading of they are incurred lor the purpose of repurchasing in the near term, Gains or losses on labilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the eriteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR") method. Gains and losses
arc recognised 1 in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amontization process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

arp on acq)!
Derecogntion
A financial liability {or a part of a fi ial liability) is d gnized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the is discharged or lled
or expires,

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount s reporied i the statement of assets and lisbilities if there is a Iy enfi ble legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial asseis

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset 15 required, the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value
1ess costs of disposal and its value in use, R ble amount is d ined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an gsset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down ta its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the nsks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can
be sdentified, an appropriate valuation model 15 used. These caleulations are corrob d by valuati Itiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
avalable fair value indicators.

The P bases its impai leul on detniled budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the company’s CGUs to which the
ndividual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of ten years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to projeet future cash flows after the tenth year To esti cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the P
polates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the produets, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is

used

Impai losses are ised in the of profit and loss.

Far assets excluding goodwill, an asscssnmm is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously ised impai losses no longer
exist or have d d. If such i 1on exists, the F i the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously rex:ngmsed impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amoynt of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor excead the carrying amount that would have been d ined, net of depreciation, had no impai

loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal 1s recognised in the statement of profit and Joss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case,
the reversal is treated as a revaluation mecrease

Cashoand cash equivalents and other bank balance
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an oniginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject
1o an msignificant risk of changes in value For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shon-term deposits, as defined above.

Treasury shares
The Company has created an Employee Stock Option Plan Trust (ESOP Trust). The Company uses ESOP trust as a vehicle for distributing shares (o employees under the
employee stock aption schemes. The Company treats ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares.

Owm equity instruments that are held by the trust are recogmised at cost and ded i from equity. Mo gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments, Any difference between the carrying amount and the ideration, if reissued, is recognised in the other equity.

Events ocenrrving after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the company identifies the events oceurring between the balance sheet date and the date on which the standalone fi ial are
approved as "Adjusting Event” and "Non-adjustung event’, Adjustments to assets and labilities are made for events occurnng aﬂ:t the balance sheet date that provide additional
information materially affecting the determination of the amounts rel.alm;, to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or b of statutory requi or b of

1 in the dalone fi idering the nature of the transaction.

their special nature. For non-adjusting events, the company may provide a d




Bigfoot Retail Selutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614
Notes to Standalone fi ial st for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.3 Recent accounting pronouncements, to the extent applicable to the Company

Recent ing p 10 the exlcnl pplicable to the Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
dards under Companies (Indian A Standards) Rules 2 issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA ded the Companies (Indian A ing
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS1-P ion of Fi ial 5

This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their signifi ing policies. The effective date for adoption of this

amendment is almunl periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the d and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
Aotk

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in .l\tcnuntmg Esﬁmntea and Ervors
This d has introduced 4 definition of * 2 " and included d to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish in i policies from
hanges in acc ing esti . The effi date for adoption of this 3 is annual peniods beminning on or after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the

dal F il

amendment and there 15 no impact on its

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the mital recognition exemption so that it does net apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting \emporary
differences. The effecuve dult for ndopnorl of this amendment 1s annual periods beginning on or after April |, 2023 The Company has evaluated the | and there is
no impact on is dal
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Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) The table below provides details regarding the ageing for Capital work-in-progress :

As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP in a period of
Particul
SR Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mo;ee:ll::n 4 Marc:?;t 2023
Projects in Progress 49.27 - - - 49.27
Projects Temporarily suspended - o - % &
Total 49,27 - - - 49.27
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP in a period of
Particulars More than 3 As at
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years March 31, 2022
Projects in Progress - - - = -
Projects Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -
As at April 1, 2021
Amount in CWIP in a period of
Particul t
SR Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Mo;ee;t:n 8 Aprﬁslamn
Projects in Progress - - " = =
Projects Temporarily suspended - - 5 w "
Total - - ¥ g "

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UTZ900DL20T1PTC225014

Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4a Right-of-use assets (refer note 30)

Gross Block Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021 25.29
Additions Consequent to Business combination of Subsidiary ( refer note 40) 149.43
Additions 208.07
Deletions -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 382.79
Additions 676.81
Deletions -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1!059.60

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 =

Amortisation expense 30.14
Balance as at March 31, 2022 30.14
Amortisation expense 140.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 170.14

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2021 25.29
Balance as at March 31, 2022 352.65
Balance as at March 31, 2023 889.46

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900DL2B1IPTC225614
Motes to Standalone financial for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Investments in associates

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Mon current
(A) Investment in associntes
Unguoted Equity Shares
Logibricks Technologies Private Limited 850 8.50 .
[52,100 (March 31, 2022 - 52,100; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up] ! [
Less; Provision for impai invalse ol I in Logibricks Technologics Private Limited (8.50)
Unquoted Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Logibricks Technologies Private Limited 10310 Lo
{632,121 (March 31,2022 - 632,12L: April 1, 2021 - il shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] L L .
Less: Provision for impairment in value of Investment in Logibricks Technologies Private Limited (103,10}
Total s 111.60 -
Aggregate value of unguoted mvesuments 111.60 111.60 -
A ale amaunt of iy an viatlee ol (Refer Mote 24 1) {111.60) - -
6 Financial Assets
(i) lnvestments
Asat As ot As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021

MNon current
(A} Investmient in subsidiaries (valued at cost)
Unquoted shares
Shiprocket Pre Lid - Singapore
12420771 (March 31,2032 - 1251971 Apeil 1, 2021 - 1000) shares at foce valus SGD | cach fully paid up] 08 3 005
Less: Provision [or imp in value of | in Shiprocket Pie Ltd - Singapore {Td.68)
Wigzo Technologics Private Limited
[18.592 (March 31, 2022 - 18.592; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares ot faco vahuc of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 546.58 546.5% :
Wigza Technelogies Private Limited 30341 143,40 2
|#.844 (March 31, 2022 - 4 980; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares ot fce value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] : '
Less: Provision for impai in value of in Wigzo Technologics Private Limiled (50.00)
Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited {fommerly Arvind Intemat Limited) q i
185,359,600 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares ot face value of Rs. 10 ¢ach fully paid up] S958 : -
Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Internet Limited)
{5.434.026 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nif) shares at face value of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up] 84.34 ' E
Pickrr Technologics Private Limited
20,832 (March 31, 2022 - Nil. April 1. 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs, 10 cach fully paid up) 10,073.14 2 ¥
Contribution by Parent Entity (Share Based Payment options to employees of Subsidiarics)” =
1 w Pickrr Technol Private Lnued 4401
13645 (March 31, 2022 - Nil, April 1, 2022 - i) shares at face value of Rs 10 cach Tully paid up| m Y
Jnvestment in Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Intermel Limited) 15638 .
[17.776 {March 31, 2022 « Nil, April 1, 2022 - Nil) shares al face value of Rs 10 cach (ully paid up| :
(B} Other Investments (valued at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income) [FYTOCH
Unguoted shares
Nirmalaya Wellness Private Limited "
[8 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Mil) shares al face value of Rs. [hcach fully paid up| .81 - %
Muliavra Enterprises Private Limited 295 295 .
|44 (March 31, 2022 - 44; April 1, 2021 - Mil} shares ol face value of Rs, 10 cach fully poid up| 2 ]
Add: [air value through other comprehensive income .95
Almo Man Private Lumited 5.00 500 5
11,122 (March 31, 2022 - 1,122 April |, 2021 - Nil} shares at [ace volue of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up) ! :
Add: fair value through other compreliensive income (5.00)
Eat Better Ventures Private Limited S0 500 .
|260 (March 31, 2022 - 260: April 1,2021 - Hil) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each lully paid up] g 2
Add: Tair valuz through other comprehensive income {5,00)
Climb Foods Privae Limited 0.52 053 .
[54 (March 31, 2022 - 54; Apnil 1, 2021 - Mil) shares at facs value of Rs. 100 cach fully paid up] )
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income {0.52)
Oddity Healtheare Private Limited 501 501 }
1116 (March 31,2022 - 118 Apeil 1, 2021 - Nil) shares ot face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up} ’ *
Add: Tair value through other comprehensive income {3.00)
Woovly Indin Private Limited 20.70 2070 .
[197 (March 31, 2022 - 197; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up) " :
Add: Fnir value through other comprehensive income (20170}
Evenflow Brands Tech Private Limited 6.98 - -
|45 (March 31, 2022 - Nil: Apal |, 2021 - Nil} shares al face value of Rs 14 cach fully paid up| :
Slick Drganies Private Limited 10.00 5 .
[435 (March 31,2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Mil) shares at face value of Rs. 10each Mully paid up| !
Mirmaluya Wellness Private Linmed 760 . .
[45 {Margh 31, 2022 - Nil: April 1, 2021 - Nil} shares ol face value of Rs L0 each fully paid up| .
Chipper consumer Private Linnited 487 i -

1190 (March 31, 2022 - ML, Apnl 1. 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up|




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC125614
Notes to Standalone financial for the year ended March 31,2023

6{ii)

All asmounts in Rs. Milli

s, unless otherwise stated,

As at Asatl Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
(B} Other Investments (valued at fair value through Other Comprehensive lncome) [FYTOCI]
Unquated shares
Mano Phyte Care Private Limited -, - i
(200 (March 31, 2022 - Nil, April 1, 2021 - Nl shares al face value of Rs 1) ench fully paid up) -
FDM Digital Solunions Private Limited 5.00 . .
[200) {March 31, 2022 - Nil, Apnl 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at fee value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) :
Happwiizers Private Limited 55 . .
[140 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) sharcs at face value of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up] g
Lauriko Private Limited
1142 (March 31, 2022 - Nili April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs, 10 cach fully paid up] 20 : ¥
Shoprty Private Limited
[155,660 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 100 cach fully paid 15.57 - -
up]
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income (15.57) - -
Current

Current Investments (valued at fair value through Profit and Loss) [FVTPL|

{A) Investments in Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund Growth Dircet Plan

194,398 57 units (March 31, 2022 - Mil; April 1, 2021 - Nil} at NAY of Rs, 363,08 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 70.58 - -
2021 - Nilj each

Kotak Liquid Fund Growth Dircet Plan

14,403.35 units (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) at NAV of Rs, 4,548.41 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 65.51 - -
2021 - Nil) each
Tata Liguid Fund Growth Direct Plan
18,443, 77 units (March 31, 2022 - Nil; Aprl |, 2021 - Nil) at NAV of Rs_ 3,551.41 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 65,50 - -
2021 - Mil) each
ABSL Arbitrage Fund
il units (March 31, 2002 - 6,573 18, Apnil [ 2021 - 6,573 [80a0 MAV of Rs. Mil (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 296.51; April % 1.95 .
01,2021 - Rs. 283.24) cach
NIL units (Mar 2022 409,034 384 anats, Apnil 01, 2021 NIL units) @ ®s. NIL (Mar 2022: Rs. 21,599, April 01, 2021, P g43 }
Rs. NIL) of ABSL Arburage Fund Fund_Growth i
NIL units (Mar 2022: 22,679 237 ubils, April 01, 2021 78.737,02] units) 47 Rs. NIL (Mar 2022: Rs. 90,1896, April 2 205 .
01, 2021 Rs. $5.9043) of ABSL Corporate Bond Fund - Growth =
141225 units (Mar 2022: 141.225 unuts, April 0, 2021: 14,866.73 units) @ Rs. 4641552 (Mar 2022; Rs, 440.3207, 007 0.06 ”
April 11, 2021: Rs. 422.7062) of ABSL Savings Fund Retail Growth % 2
NIL units (Mar 2022: 2,313,988 units, April 01, 2021; 47,322.471 units) @ Rs. NIL (Mar 2022: Rs. 34.2623, April 01, ) 0.08 B
2021 Rs. 29.7253) of Franklin [ndia Ultra Short Bond Fund
72,780.778 units (Mar 2022; 2,72 472 882 units, April 01, 2021: 2,72,472 882 units) @ Rs. 50.5205 (Mar 2022: Rs.
47.7874, April 01, 2021 Rs, 45.8632) ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund 3.68 13.02 :
467.752 wnits (Mar 2022: 467,752 units, April 01, 2021: 467,752 units) @) Rs. 23.6124 (Mar 2022: Rs. 22,4202, April 601 ol .
01,2021: Rs, 21.5663) ICICI Prudential Mutul Fund . .
37,735,433 wnits (Mar 2022 2,78.252 353 units, April 01, 2021: 2,78,252 353 units) (@ Rs. 48.1735(Mar 2022: Rs. 279 12.03 .
46,4728, Apnil 1, 2021; Rs, 44.6658) of IDFC Bond Fund Short Term Plan ! '
NIL units (Mar 2022 3,76.532.222 units, Apnl 011, 20211 3,76,532.222 units) @ Rs. NIL (Mar 2022- Rs. 42 5874, 0.00 16,05 .
April 01,2021 Rs, 40.4548) of Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund ; '
622.319 units (Mar 2022: 833 908 units, April 01, 2021: NIL units) @ Rs. NIL (Mar 2022: Rs. $7.8568, April 01, 0.06 0.07 .
2021: Rs. NIL) of Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund d :
Total 13.264.32 853.52 005
Non Current 13,056.13 79847 005
Current 208.20 55.04 -
Aggregate amount of unguoted investmenis carried al cosl 13,133.82 759.28 0.08
Aggregate amount of iny m valug of in subsidiaries (Refer note 24.1) (124.68) - -
Aggregate amount of unguoted mwestments ol FVTOC! 46,98 39,20 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investiments at FVTPL 208.20 55.04 -
*ncludes share based payment expense all d 1o subsidinry companics for stock oplions given Lo emplayees of subsidiary companics. (refer noie 31)
Trade receivables

Asat Asat As at
Trade receivables 62372 44328 140.75
Receivables from other relaled partics (Reler Note 34) 3.26 - -

626.98 443.28 14075




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UT29200DL2011PTCI25614
Notes to Standalone financiel

LAl amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31,2023

Break-up of Trade Receivables:

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April1,2021
Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered pood 626.98 443.28 140.75
Trade receivables - credit impaired 282,34 143.40 87.78
509,32 5B6.65 22853
Impairment All {all for bad and deubtiul debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired {282,34) (143.40) (87.78)
Total Trade Receivables 626,98 443.28 14075
Set oul below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables:
Asat Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Balances at the beginning of the year 143,40 87.78 37.93
Additions during the vear 138.93 55.62 4985
Balances at the end of the year 282.33 143.40 87.78
Trade Receivables ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars Less than & 6 manths - [ 12 23 More thin 3 years Total
mionths yenr P e ore (k2.
Undispeled Trade reccivabl idered good 62522 176 - - - 62698
Undisputed Trade Receivables - ercdit impaired 57.12 109.74 11348 - 262.34
Total 682,34 111.51 115.48 - = 909.32
As at March 31,2022
Qutstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars Less than 6 & months - 1 Total
ol s 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yenrs
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 442,10 - 0.54 0.64 - 443.28
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 1.73 55.72 B5.95 - - 143.40
Total 443.33 55.72 86.49 0.4 - 586.68
As at April 1, 2021
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particular: - Total
Hnp Les than & oaricty:] 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years o
mgnths year
Unds § Trade receivables — considered good 139.39 136 - - . 140.75
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 342 3936 43.00 - - R7.78
Total 144.81 40.72 43.00 - - 228.53
Notes:

) No teade or otlier receivable are due [row dircetors or atbier officers of the company eittier severally or jointly with any ather persan. Ner any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private
companics respectively in which any direetor is a parner, a dircetor or a member. Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and arc generally on terms of 30 to 90 doys.
1) For terms and conditions relating 1o refated party seceivables, refer Note 34

) Refer Mete 6(vi) for unbilled recevables.

(This space hay heen inenttonally left blank)
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6iiii)

Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Balances with banks
— On current accounts 26.39 315 1201
= On current accounts for Amount payable. colleeted on behall of the customerns 450.04 165.64 54.40
— Deposits with original maturity of less than three manths 12.04 1183 -
Cash on hand 0.01 0.09 001
Total 489.08 180.71 66.43
6{iv) Bank balnnces other than (iii) above
Asat As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Balances with banks:
= In Transit - 2.94 N
- Deposits with orignal maturity for more than 3 months and upto 12 months* 75.9% 60.22 73078
Total 75.99 63.16 739.78
Motes:
a) Deposits with banks are made for varying periods of belween six months and (wo years, depending on the i diate cash requi of the Company, and carn inlerest at the respective short-term
deposit rates.

B{v}

Givi) Other financial assets

1) At 31 March 2023, the Companiy had available Rs. 82512 million (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 209.30 million, Agril 1, 2021 - Rs, 166,50 million) of undrawn commilted borrowing facilitics,
€) Fixed deposits len of Rs. 2,711 83 million (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 209.30 million; April 1, 2021 - Rs. 16690 million) marked for Kotak Mahindra Bank, ICICI Bank, HDFC Bank, Axis Bank, CITI
Bank, Yes Bank and American Express for ODFD and Corporate Credit eard respectively

Loans
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Financinl assets carried at amortised cost
Current
Unsecured, considered pood™
Loans to related partics (Note 34) 51892 - -

* Unsecurcd loan has been given to related parties for gencral working eapital purposes, the same being repayable on demand and carries interest @ 7.2% pa

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non Current
) Security deposils
Unsecured, considered good 60.77 17.39 1.80
Unseeured, considered doubiful 1.25 1.25 1.25
Less: Allowance for doubt{ul deposils (1.25) (1.25) (1.25)
60.77 17.3% 1.50
b} Advance for Invesiment in subsidiaries (Note 34)
Unseeured, considered zood 300,00 - -
300.00 = -
¢) Bank deposits*
With remaining malurity of more than |2 months 15597 9.744.35 1,066.70
155.97 9,744.35 1,066.70
d} Interest Recovable
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 14.58 132.15 17.65
14.58 132.15 17.65
Total Other Non-corrent financial nssets 531.32 9,893.88 1,086.15

(Thix space has heen tnientionally efi blant)
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As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Finuncial assets carried at amortised cost
Current
) Securily deposils
Unsceured, considered pood 0.50 0.50 -
0.50 0.50 e
) Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue
Unsceured, considered good (Refer note 15) 506,73 379.97 208.94
506,73 3719.97 208.94
c} Bank deposits®
With remaining maturity of fess than 12 manths G,340.86 2,684 25 -
6,340.86 2,684.25 -
d} Interest Reccivable
Interest acered on deposits with banks 227.05 3269 -
Loans to related partics 18.64 - -
245,69 32.69 -
©) Other Receivables
Unseeured, considered pood 112.26 87.59 74.91
Receivables from related partics (nate 34) 17.16 2378 -
Unsecured, considered doubtlul
R bie which have significant increase in credit risk 39.02 6.92 -
Recoverable - credit impaired (39.02) (6.52) -
129.42 111.37 74.91
Total Other current financinl nssets 7,223.20 3,208.78 18385

*Note: Deposits with banks are made for varying periods depending upon the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,

7 Inventories (At lower of Cost or Net realisable value)

As at Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Traded goods (Packing Material )y 12.13 873 222
1213 573 222
8 Income Tax Assets (net)
As at Asat Asat
M 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
Non current
Advance Income Tax {Net of Provision for Incormie tax - Rs. 17.14 19.47 >
Nil, March 31,2022 - Rs, Nil, April 1, 2021 - Rs. Nil) ) .
Total Non current Tax Assels 17.14 19.47 =
Currem
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision for Income tax - Rs.
Nil, March 31, 2022 - Rs, Nil, April 1, 2021 - Rs. Nily Al B A
Total Current Tax Assets 205.71 83.47 24.80

MNoie - The company has availed the option of concessional rate rate of 22% under Seetion 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

8 Other assets

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Non current
a) Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good 1.94 11.99 -
194 11.99 -
b) Prepaid Expenses
Unsecured. considered gpood 0.04 - -
0.04 - &
Total Other non-current pssets 1.98 1 l=99 -
Current
a) Advance 1o Supplicrs
Unseeured, considered good 24.10 18.57 5.03
24.10 18.57 5.03
b) Prepaid Expenses
Unseoured, considered good 20,90 16.59 8.37
20,90 16.59 837
¢} Advance 10 Employee
Unseeured, considered good 1.43 0.36 .08
143 0.36 0.08
d) Balances with Government authoritics {nel) 121.59 72.36 6.19
121.59 7236 6.19
Total Other current assels 168.02 107.88 19.67
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10 Share Capital

Details of share capital is as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 1,2021

Autherised Share Capital

Equity Shares

800,000 (March 31,2022 - 800,000, April |, 2021 - 4,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 8.00 3.00 4.50
Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
94,591 (March 31, 2022 - 94,591, April 1, 2021 - 94,591) of 0.0001% C. Isoril ibl i shares serics A of Rs. 10 cach 0.95 0.95 0.95
192,000 (March 31, 2022 - 1,92,000; April |, 2021 - 192,000) of 0.0001% C, Isorily C ible Pref: Shares Series B of Re. 332.99 cach 63.93 63.93 63.93
468,488 (March 31, 2022 - 4,68,488; April 1, 2021 - 468,488) of 1.0001% C Isorily C ible Prefi Shares Series Bl of Rs. 355 cach 166.31 166.31 166,31
280,000 (March 31, 2022 - 2,.80,000; April 1, 2021 - 280,000) of 0,0001% C Isorily C. ibh fi Shares Series Cl of Rs. 355 cach 9040 o040 99,40
103,000 (March 31, 2022 - 1,05,000; April 1, 2021 - 1,05,000) of 0.0001% C C ible Prefi Shares Serics €2 of Rs. 355 cach 37.28 3118 728
81,500 (March 31, 2022 - 81,500; April 1, 2021 - 81,500) of 0.0001% C: Isorily C P Shares Scries C3 of Rs. 355 cach 28.93 2893 28.93
180,000 (March 31, 2022 - 1,80,000: April 1, 2021- Nil) of 0.0001% Compulsorily C ible Prefe Shares Series D1 of Rs, 355 each 63,90 63.90 -
360,000 (March 31, 2022 - 3,60,000; April 1, 2021- Nil) of 0,0001% C Isorily C ible Prefe Sharcs Scrics E of Rs. 355 cach 127.80 127.80 -
H0,000 (March 31, 2022- Nil; April 1, 2021- Nil) of 0.0001% C: Isorily C ible Pref Shares Serics E1 of Rs, 355 cach 28.40 - -
90,000 (March 31, 2022- Nil: April 1, 2021- Nil) of 0.0001% € Isorily C ible Prefi Shares Serics E2 of Rs. 355 cach 31.95 - =
Total 656.85 596.50 401.30

* During the year ended March 31 2023, the authorized share capital of the Company has been increased from Rs. 596,50 million to Rs. 656.85 million by adding 80,000 of 0.0001% compulsorily convertible series EI
preference shares of Rs. 355 cach and 90,000 of 0.0001% pulsorily ble series E2 prefe shares of Rs. 355 each.

Equity Shares
Issued, subseribed and fully paid up

500,988 (March 31, 2022 - 4,27, 246, April |, 2021 - 427, 146) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 cach 501 427 427
Less. Buy-back of equity shares [Nil {March 31. 2022 - 21,832, April 1, 202 | - Nil)| equity shares of Rs. 10 cach# - 0.22) ]
Less Amount recoverable from ESOP's Trust |7 1000 (March 31, 2022 - 71,000: April 1202 - 71.000) cquity sharcs of Rs 10/- cacl
allotted 1o the ESOP trust]* 071) ©.71) (0.71)
(A) 4.30 334 3.56

lssued, Subseribed but not fully paid shares

32,115 (March 31, 2022 - 32,115; April 1, 2021 - Nily Equity Shares of Rs, 11 cach, Rs. | per share called-up 0.03 0.03 -

(B) 0.03 0.03 -

Total (C=A+B) 3.33 338 3.56
Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
D0001% C Isorily C bic Preit shares Series A
90,781 (March 31, 2022 - 90,781, April |, 2021 - 90,781) C pulsorily € bic Prefi Share of Rs. 10 cach 091 091 0.8]
00,0001 % Compulsorily C ible Prefi shares Series B

191,843 (March 31, 2022 - 191,845: April 1, 2021 - 1,91,845) C Isarily Cs ible Pref Shares of Rs.332.99 cach 63.88 63 88 6388
00001 % Compulserily C bie Pref shares Series B
468 381 (March 31, 2022 - 468,381; April 1, 2021 - 468,38 1) Compulsorily C ible Prefe Shares of Rs.335 each 166,28 166,28 166,28
0.0001% Compulsorily C ible Prefi shares Serjes CI

246,253 (March 31, 2022 - 246,253; April | 2021 - 2,46,253} C pulsarily Ce ible Proft Shares of Rs. 355 each #7.42 87.42 8742
0.0001% C Isorily C ible Preft shares Serics C2
94,968 (March 31, 2022 - 94 968; April |, 2021 - 94,968) Compulsorily Conventible Preference Shares of Rs, 355 cach Ex | 3171 3am
0.0001% Compulsorily C ible Pref shares Series C3

81,395 (March 31, 2022 - 81,395; April 1 202] - 81,393) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 355 cach 28.90 28.90 28.90
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Pref: sharcs Series D1

167,148 (March 31, 2022 - 167, 148, April |, 2021 - Nil) Compulsanily C ible Prefi Shares of Rs. 355 vach 59.34 59.34 -
0.0001% Compulsorily C ible Prefi shares Series E

349,207 (March 31, 2022 - 349.207: April | 2021 - Nil) Compulsorily Comvertible Prefercnce Shares of R 355 cach 123.97 123.97 -
0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preferenee sharcs Sveres E1

Nil (March 31, 2022- Nil, April 1. 2021- Nil) of 0.0001% Compulsonly Convertible Prefirnce Shares Serics E| of Rs 333 cach - - -
0.0001% Compulsonly Convertible Preforence shares Senes E2

39,793 (March 31, 2022- Nil, April 1, 2021- Nil) of 0000 1% © prulsorily C ble Prefi Sharcs Scries E2 of Rs. 335 cach 21.23 - -
Tatal ) 585.63 564.40 381.09
Total Issued Share Capital (E=C+D) 589,96 567.78 354.66

* The Company has created an ESOP Trust for providing share based paynieats o its emplayees. The Company teeats the trust as its extension and shares held by trust are treaicd as treasury shares, Own equity
instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from equity share capital,

# During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has concluded the buyback of 21,832 equity shares at a price of Rs. 34,028.48 per equity share ("Buyback”) as approved earlier by the Board of Directors on
February 24, 2022, Buyback was completed on March 13, 2022 and the equity sharcs bought back were extinguished on March 13, 2022, Total outflow of Rs, 742.91 million has been utilized from the share capital
and securitics premium, in line with the requi under the € ics Act, 2013, Further, tax on Buyback and Buyback refated ing to Rs. 173,02 million and Rs, 1.20 million respectively have
also been utilized from Securitics Premium. Additionally, Capital Redemption reserve of Rs, 0,22 million {equivalent to nominal value of the equity shares bought back) has been created out of Surplus/{Deficit) in the
statement of Profit and Loss, in line with the req under the Companics Act. 2013, C o extinguis) of shares so bought back, the paid up equity share capital has been reduced by Rs. 0.22 million.
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{b}  Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021
Class & N f
. - Number %o of holding Number %o of holding Number % of hold:
Equity shares
Gautam Kapoor 1,135,865 21.73% 1,15,865 26,48% 1,20,799 28.28%
Saahil Goel 1,15,466 21.73% 1,15,866 26.48% 1,20,799 28.28%
Vishesh Khurana 25,557 4.79% 25,557 5.84% 27,622 6.47%
ESOP's Trust 16,501 21.86% 116511 26.63% 143,429 33.58%
Arvind Limited 37,044 6.95% - - - -
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Serics A
Tribe Caputal 11, LLC, Series 1 48,258 53, 16% 48,258 53.16% 48,258 53.16%
Tribe Capital [1l, LLC. Series § 22,616 24.91% 21616 24.91% 22,516 24.91%
Bertelsmann Nederland BV, 19,907 21.93% 19507 211.93% 19,907 21.93%
0.0001% Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares Series B
Mirvana Digital Investment Holding Ltd 20,727 10.80% 20,727 10.80% 69,896 36.43%
Tribe Capital 111, LLC, Series 5 34,788 28 56% 54,788 28.56% 54,788 28.56%
Mirvana Digital Indiz Fund - 0.00% - 0.00% 25,767 13.43%
Bertelsmann Nederland B, V. 34,804 18.14% 34,800 18.14% 23375 12.18%
Info Edge Ventures 22,869 11.92% 22,869 11,92% - =
Zonute Limited 21,832 11.38% 21,832 11.38% = 3
Paypal Inc 11,434 5.96% 11,434 5.96% - =
0.0001 % Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series Bl
Bertelsmann Nederland B.V. 241,423 51.54% 241,423 51.34% 2,41,423 52,59%
Tribe Capital 111, LLC, Series 5 69,867 14.92% 69,867 14.92% 69,867 15.22%
Nirvana Digital Investment Holding Lid 56,892 12.15% 56,892 12.15% 56,892 12.39%
MCP3 8PV LLC 40,906 8.73% 40,906 &.73% 40,906 8.91%
Ninvana Digital India Fund 25,281 5.40% 25,281 5.40% 28,830 6.28%
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series C1
Bertelsmann Nederland BV, 192,112 T4.01% 1,92,112 78.01% 192,112 78.01%
Tribe Capital 1M, LLC, Scrics | 28,915 11.74% 28915 11.74% 28,915 11.74%
Nirvana Digital India Fund 19,220 7 80% 18,220 7.80% 19,220 7.80%
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series C2
Bertelsmiann Nederland BV, 27,134 29.20% 27,7 29.20% 27,734 20.20%
Tribe Capital 1, LLC, Series | 67,234 70.80% 67,234 70.80% 67,234 70.80%
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Serics C3
MCP3 SPV LLC 43410 53.33% 43,411 53.33% 43411 5333%
Tribe Capital 111, LLC, Series § 37,944 46.67% 37,984 46.67% 37,984 46.67%
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Servies D1
MCP3 SPV LLC 26,679 15 96% 26,679 15.96% = .
Tribe Capital 1. LLC, Series 7 Partners 21.344 127 21,344 12.77% - -
Paypal Inc 33,359 31.92% 53,359 31.92% . =
Bertelsmann Nederland BV, 53350 31.92% 53,359 3.92% - "
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series E
Zomato Limited 1,532,082 37.82% 1,32,082 3TE2% = =
MacRitchic Investments Pre. Ltd 1,089,059 31.23% 1,09,059 31.23% - -
LR India Fund 1 Sarl, SICAV-RAIF 69,861 20,01% 69,861 2001% - =
0.0001% Compulsorily C ible Prefl Shares Series E2
MacRitchie Invesiments Pte. Lid 17,283 28.90% « - - u
LR Indin Fund | S.arl, SICAV-RAIF 17,975 30.06% - - - -
Bertelsmann Mederland B.V. 3,987 15.03% - = - &
MCP3 SPV LLC 4,494 7.52% 4 s 2 .
Moore Strategic Ventures LLC 8,987 15.03% - E - =

{c)  Terms/ rights attached to Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all prferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the cquity shares held by the sharcholders.

(d)  Terms/ rights attached to Instruments entirely equity in nature

L0001 % C lative Compulsory C ible Prefe Shares- Series A (Face Value- Rs. 10)
Series A CCPS may at any time be. fully or pantly converted into equity shares at the sole option and diseretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of | (Onc) fully paid equity share per 1 (One) Serics A CCPS.

Serics A CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-if converted basis.

Serics A CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Nineteen) years from the date of their lssuance, on the cxpiry of which, the series A CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into cquity shares.
The CCPS sharcholders have right to receive dividend prier 1o equity share holders. The Serics A CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of the
Serics A CCP'S are entitled to such preportionate dividends as distbuted 1o the sther Shareholders of the Company . determined on a Fully Diluted Basis

I event of liquidation, Pari passu with the payient of the amounts to the holders of Scries A Prefiercnce Shares, each of the holders of the Serics A Preference Shares will be entitled to receive {in preference to any
cquity sharcholder), an ameunt cqual to the higher of (2} a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Series A Preference Shares in the Company on 2 fully
diluted basis, and (b) one times the Subseription Price on cach Series A Prefercace Share held by such holder plus any declaned but unpaid dividends.
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00001 %, Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shaves- Series B {Face Value- Its, 332.99)

Series B CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted mto equity shares at the sole aption and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rte of | (One) fully paid cquity share per | (One) Serics B CCPS.

Series B CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-if converted basis,

Serics B CCPS shall bave a maximum maturity period of 19 {Nincteen) vears from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the scries B CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into equity shares,
The CCPS sharcholders have right to recewve dividend prior to equity share holders, The Scrics B CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum, In addition to the above, the holders of cach of the
Senes B CCPS are entitled 1o such proporti dividends as distributed to the other Sharcholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis.

I event of liguidation, after the payment of amounts to the holders of Series B CCPS, cach of the holders of the Serics B Preference Shares will be entitled to receive {in preference to any equity sharcholder), an
ameunt equal to the higher of: {2} a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics B Preference Sharcs in the Company on a fully-diluted basis; and (b)

one times the Subscription Price on cach Serics B Preference Share held by such halder plus any declared but unpaid dividends,

0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series Bl (Face Value- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 4,68,3% 1 nos 0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory € ible Prefe Shares (CCPS)- Scrics B of Face Value of Rs, 355
(Rupees Three Hundred Fifly Five) each at a premium of Rs, 727.22 cach.

Series BI CCPS may at any time be, fully or panly converted into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of | (One) fully paid equity share per | (One) Series B1 CCPS,

Serics B1 CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the equity sharcs, on an as-if converted basis,

Sertes BI CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Mincteen) years from the date of their issuanse, on the expiry of which, the series Bl CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into cquity

shares.
The CCPS sharcholders have right to receive dividend prior to cquity share holders The Serics B CCPS bears a curmulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of cach of the
Scrics BL CCPS are entitled to such proporti dividends as distributed to the other Sharcholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis.

In cvent of liguidation, Each of the halders of the Serics BI CCPS will be entitled to roccive (in preference Lo any equity sharchelder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro mia portion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Series BI CCPS in the Company ot a fully diluted basis; and (k) one times the Subscription Price on each Serics Bl CCPS held by such holder plus any
deelared but unpaid dividends,

0.0001 % Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series C1 (Face Valug- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 2,456,253 nos 0,000 1% Cumulative © pulsory Ce ible Prefe Shares (CCPS)- Series C1 of Face Value of Rs, 355
{Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) cach at a premium of Rs. 727,22 each.

Series C1 CCPS may atany time be, fully or partly converted into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of | (One) fully paid cquity share per | (One) Series C1 CCPS.

Series C1 CCPS wll carry voting nghts pari-passu with the equity shares, on an ag-if converted basis.

Series C1 CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Mincteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the serics C1 CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into equity

shares,
The CCPS sharcholdors have nght to receive dividend priot to equity share halders ‘The Series C1 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of cach of the
Series C1 CCPS are entitled to such proporti dividends as distributed to the other Sharcholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis.

In cvent of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series ClLCCPS will be cntitled to receive (in preference to any equity sharcholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro rta portion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics C1 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (b) one times the Subscription Price on cach Series C1 CCPS held by such holder plus any

declared but unpaid dividends

0.0001% Cumulative C Isory C ible Preft Shares - Series C2 (Face Value- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company issucd fully paid up and subscribed 94,968 nos 0.0001% Cumulative Compul y G ible Prefe Shares (CCPS)- Series C2 of Face Value of Rs. 355
(Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) each at a premium of Rs. 3360 cach,

Serics C2 CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted into equity shares at the sole option and diserction of the CCPS holder, at the rate of | (One) fully paid equity share per | (One) Serics C2 CCPS.
Series C2 CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the cquity shares, on an as-if converted basis.
Series €2 CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 {Ninteen) vears from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series C2 CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into equity

shares.
The CCPS sharcholders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share holders The Serics €2 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of the
Serivs C2 CCPS are entitled to such prop dividends as distribured to the other Shareholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis,

I event of liguidation, Each of the helders of the Serics C2 CCPS will be entitled to receive {in preference to any equity sharcholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the procecds of the
Liguidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics €2 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (b) onc times the Subscription Price on each Serics €2 CCPS held by such holder plus any
declared but unpaid dividends

0.0001 % Cumulative Ci Bsory Ci ible Pref Shares - Series C3 (Face Value- Rs, 355)

Duwsring the vear ended March 31, 2021, the Company sssued fully paid up and subscribed 81,395 nos 0.0001% Cumulative C pulsory C ible Prefi Shares (CCPS)- Series C3 of Face Value of Rs. 355
(Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) cach at a promium of Rs 6,447 93 each,

Series C3 CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 1 (Dng) fully paid equity share per 1 (One) Series C3 CCPS,

Series €3 CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the cquity shares, on an as-if converted basis

Series C3 CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Ninetecn) years from the date of ther issuance. on the expiry of which, the scrics C3 CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into equity
shares

The CCPS sharcholders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share holders The Serivs C3 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. ln addition to the above, the holders of cach of the
Serics C3 CCPS are entitled 1o such propertionate dividends as distributed 1o the other Shareholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis,

In event of liguidation, Each of the holders of the Scrics C3 CCPS will be entitled to receive (in preference to any cquity sharcholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro mta portion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics C3 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis, and (b) one times the Subseription Price on cach Serics C3 CCPS held by such holder plus any

declared but unpaid dividends.
0.0001 % Ci lative C. Isory C ible Pref Shaves - Series DI (Face Value- Rs. 355)
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 167,148 nes 0.0001% Cumulative C pulsary Cy ible Prefi Shares {CCPS)- Series DI of Face Value of Rs. 353

(Rupees Three Hundred Fifly Five) each at a premivm of Rs. 1346292 cach

Series DI COPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted into equity shares at the sobe option and diseretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 0.50 (One-half) fuully paid cquity share per 1 {One) Series DI CCPS,
Series D1 CCPS will carry voting riglts pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-if converted basis,

Series DI CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 {Nineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series DI CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert into equity

shares,
The CCPS sharcholders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share holders The Scries DI CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of cach of the
Series DI CCPS are entitled to such proporti dividends as distributed to the other Sharcholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis,

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series D1 CCPS will be entitled to receive {in pref to any equity sharcholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the
Liguidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics D1 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (b) onc times the Subscription Price on each Series D1 CCPS held by such holder plus any
declared but unpaid dividends.
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(e)

0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series E (Face Value- Rs, 355)
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company issued fully paid up and subseribed 333,925 nos 0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory C ible Prof Shares (CCPS)- Series E of Face Value of Rs. 355
{Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) each ara premium of Rs. 33,673 48 cach,

Serics E CCPS may at any time b, fully of partly converted into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of | (One) fully paid cquity share per 1 (Onc) Series E CCPS,

Scrics E CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the cquity shares, on an as-if converied basis.

Scries E CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Mincteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the serics E CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covert fnto equity shares.
The CCPS shareholders have right to receive dividend prior to cquity share holders . The Serics E CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per ansum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of the
Series E CCPS arc entitled 10 such proport dividends as distrit to the other Sharcholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis.

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Serics E CCPS will be cntitled to receive (in prefe to any cquity sharcholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics E CCPS in the Company on 4 fully diluted basis; and (b) one times the Subscription Price on each Serics E CCPS held by such holder plus any
declared but unpaid dividends.

0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series E1 (Face Value- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issued fully paid up and subscribed 74,64 | wos 0.0001% Cumul Compulsory C ible Prefe Shares (CCPS)- Series E1 of Face Value of Rs. 355
{Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Five) cach ar a premivm of Rs. 33,673 4% each 10 the dersip s of Prckrr Technclogies Private Limited in liew of purchase of their stake in Pickrr Technologics Private Limited,
The same got converted inta 58,530 cquity shares of Face value of Rs, 10 cach at a premim of Rs, 43,384. 13 each during the same financial year,

0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series E2 (Face Value- Rs, 385y

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issucd fully paid up and subscribed 39,793 nos 0,0000% Cumul Compulsory Convertible Prefg Sharcs (CCPS)- Series E2 of Face Value of Rs. 355
(Rupees Three Hundred Fifly Five) each ata premium of Rs, 43,039 13 cach

Series E2 CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted into cquity shares at the sale option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of | (One) fully paid cquity share per | (One) Series E CCPS.

Stries E2 CCPS will carry voting rights pani-passu with the equity sharcs, on an as-if converted basis,

Series E2 COPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Nincteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series E2 CCPS shall compulsorily and autematically covert into equity
shares.

The CCPS sharchalders have right to receive dividend prior to equity share bolders  The Series E2 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of the
Serics E2 CCPS arc entitled 1o such proports Hividends as distributed to the other Sharcholders of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Basis,

I cvent of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series E2 CCPS will be entitled to receive (in prefi to any cquity sharcholder), an amount equal to the higher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the
Liquidation Event based on the sharcholding of such holder of Serics E2 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (b) one times the Subscription Price on each Series E2 CCPS hold by such holder plus any
declared but unpaid dividends.

Exit Rights to Instruments entirely equity in nature
The Company has entered into sharcholders agreement with various private equity investors for purchase of shares. As per the terms of SHA, the Company will initiate a qualified institutional placement offer (*QIPO")

on a recognised stock exchange,
After the expiry of 36 months from the Initial Closing Date, if the Majority Investor Sharch d inc, in their sole di ion, that the Company will not be able to satisfy its obligation to consummate the QIFO,
the Majority Invester Sharcholders shall have the right to require the Company and the Prometers to complete a Liquidation Event,

1£ the Company is unable to, for any reason, complete & QIPO within the agreed period, then the Majority Investor Sharcholdzrs shall have the right to issue a written notice (“Exit Notice™) to the Company and the
Promaters to provide an exit to the Investor Sharcholders who clect to participate in such exit (“Electing Investor Shareholders") specifying that the Company andlor the Promoters shall provide an exit to such Electing
Investor Sharcholders in the ways, d inwed by the Company.

In reference to Ind AS 32, as per previously entered CCPS agreemecnts for serics A to D, the Exit Right clause stated that the Company and the promater to provide an exit o the Investor sharcholder who elect to
participate in such exit a) buyback of shares held by eleeting investors b} sake of shares w favour of third party ¢} combination of {a) and (b). The above condition for right by investor requiring the Company to
buyback gives rise lo classification of CCPS as liability, however the amendment was ageeed with the mvestors as below

As per clause 24.9.1 of series E - ~This agreement along with the Managenent Rights letters and RTS agreaments, sets out the entire agreement and understanding berween the partics with respect 1o the subject matter
hescof and supersedes and extinguishes any and all prior d [ dence, ar or between the parties hereto with respect to the matters contained in the agreement, whether in oral or

writen

As per Clause 13 4 Other exit options: - “if the company is unable to, for any reason, complete a QIPO or sale event by drop dead date, then the Special Investor Super Majority shall, after the Drop dead date , have
the right to issue 4 written natice to the Company and founders to provide an exit to the investors who clect to participate in such exit specifying that the Company andfor founders shall provide an exit to such clecting
Investors by way of sale of shares held by electing mvestors in favour of third party ata price and on such terms acceptable to the Special Investor Super Majority in their sole diseretion™,

As per Ind AS 32, a contract that contains an obligation for an entity to purchase its own «quity nstruments for cash or another financial asset gives rise to a financial liability for the present value of the redemption
amount uiless specified otherwise,

CCPS are convernible info fixed number of shares subject to anti dilution clause which is in the company’s coatrol. Company may choose not to issue shares at lower price. If company fails to complets QIPQ then the
company shall provide exit by way of sale in favour of third party. Now post issuance of serics E, the Company do not have obligation to buy back shares instead can arrange a third party to purchase shares of the
Company

Based on above and in accordance with IND AS 32, the Company is not obligated to purchase its own i and

aly has classified the CCPS under “Equity”

Shares issued for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the cmployes stock option (ESOP) plan of the company, please refer note 31

Details of shares held by promaters
The Company is professionally managed and docs nat have an identifiable promoter.
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Ty

L1y

Other cauity
Particulars

(i) Securities Promium

As at April 1, 2021

Add: Fremum on shares 1ssued duning the vear

Less: Utilization against buyback of equity shares

Less: Tax paid en buyback of equity shares

Less: Expenses on buvback of equity shares

Less: Transaction ¢ost asseciated with issuance of shares
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Premium on shares issued during the vear

As at March 31, 2023

{ii) Share-based payment reserve

Asat April 1, 2021

Add: Share based pavment expense (Refer note 31)

As at March 31, 2022

Add: Share based payient expense (Refer note 31)

Add: Emplayee stock option alk to subsidiary companics (Refer note 31)
Less: Transfer to General Reserve on ESOPs lapsed during the year

As at March 31, 2023

(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve

As at April 1, 2021

Add: Reserve created on buyback of shares
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Reserve ercated on buyback of sharcs
As at March 31, 2023

{v) Genernl Reserve

Asat April 1, 2021

Add: Transfer on account of ESOPs lapsed duning the vear
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Transfer on account of ESOPs lapsed duning the year
As at March 31, 2023

(vi) Retained earnings

Asat April 1, 2021

Add: (Loss)/Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the vear

Less: Capital Redemption Reserve ereated on Buyback of shares
As at March 31, 2022

Add: {Loss)Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive ingome for the vear

As at March 31, 2023

Total Reserve and Surplus

Amount

1,393.52
1401272
(742.69)
(173.02)
(1.20)

(369.79)
14,119.54

6,372.95

20,492.49

1.22
32381
325,03
458,60
40038

{25.08)

_lissy

0.22
0.22

0.22

(488.00)

(549.35)

(2.82)
PR (7}
{1,040.40)

(1,641.23)

(76.67)
s

As at April 1, 2021 906,74
As ot March 31, 2022 13,404.39
As at March 31, 2023 18,918.42
Nature and purpose of Reserves

Sccurities Premium

The amount ro the additional amount sharcholders paid for their issued shares that was in excess of the par valuc of those shares. The same can be utilised

for the items specificd under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013,

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain i

income. These changes are

accumulated within the Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income within cquity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve fo refained

carmings when the relevant equity secunies are derecogmised.

Share Based Payment Reserve

The share options-based pavment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to emplovees under Employee stock option plan,

Retained Earnings

ings are the p (toss) that the Company has camed/incurred till date, less any transfers to gencral reserve, dividends or other distributions paid

1o sharchold d camings include

Loss,

Capital Redemption Reserve

(loss)gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that wall not be reclassificd to Statement of Profit and

Ag per the provisions of Compagies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is ereated when a company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or scouritics
premium. A sum cqual to the nomingl value of the shares so purchased 1s transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with

the provisions of Section 69 of Companics Act, 2013,

General Reserve

The Company appropriates a portion to gencral rescrves out of the profits voluntarily to meet future contingencies. The said reserve is available for payment of

dividend to the shareholders as per the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013,
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12 Financial Liabilities

12{i) Borrowings

y As at Asal As at
Particulars Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 1,2021
Current

Term Loan

Current maturities of Long-term borrowings - - 63.64
Others

Bank Qwerdralt (secured) 1,718.08 - -
Total 1,718.08 - 63.64
Taotal (a+b) 1,718.08 - 63.64
Total current 1,718.08 - 63.64
Notes:

1) Secured loan taken from Innoven Capital India Pvt. Ltd, of Rs. 200 million which is repayable in 22 equated monthly installments. The rate of interest is 14.30% p.a. The
outstanding seven installments equivalent to 63.64 million had been fully repaid during the year ended March 31, 2022

b) The company has ding Bank overdraft facility of Rs. 1718.08 million (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) availed from ICIC] Bank and HDFC Bank]for OD-FD
facility with interest rate ranging between 4.50% to 5% and tenure being up to twelve months.

&) At March 31, 2023, the Company had available Rs. 825,12 million (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 209.30 million; April 1, 2021 - Rs. 166.90 million) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities.

d) Fixed deposits lien of Rs. 2,711.83 million (March 31, 2022 - Rs 209,30 million; April 1, 2021 - Rs. 166.90 million) marked for Kotak Mahindra Bank, ICICI Bank, HDFC
Bank, Axis Bank, CITI Bank, Yes Bank and American Express for ODFD and Cerporate Credit card respectively.

12(ii} Trade payables

As at Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 1,2021
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpnses (Refer note 28) 66.55 2517 347
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail enterprises 1,315.38 B58.67 519.05
Total 1,381.93 883.84 522,52

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.

For explanations on the C 's gredit risk management processes, refer note 38

For terms and conditions relating to related party payables, refer note 34,

Trade Pavable ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023
Quistanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars Total
arteadar Lear tinyi) 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
Total oylstandmg dues of micro enterprises and small 56,55 ¥ 5 . 66,55
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 111936 005 ' B 1.119.41
enterprises and small enterprises
Accrued Expenses 19597 - - - 195.97
Total 1,381.58 0.08 - - I£1.93
As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for foellowing periods from transaction date
Particular Total
TS Lﬂ;:::“ ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
; 2517 - - -
enterprises 2517
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
prises and small enterpri " Ll & ) 538.25
Accrued Expenses 32042 - - - 32042
Total 883.81 0.03 - z 883.84
-
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12(iii)

As at April 1, 2021

Quitstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars 7 Total
TR Lts;::::“ : 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years A
Total a}llsmlldlllg dues of micro enterprises and small 3.47 . . 347
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
: 60 .33 - -
enterprises and small enterprises o 6l 356.93
Accrued Expenses 162,12 - - - 162.12
Totl 522.19 033 - - 522.52
ok

There are no disputed dues from micro enterprises and smiall enterprises and creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises as at March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022

and April 1,2021
The above ageing 15 prepared for Inveices booked on first in first out basis

Other Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current

a) Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers

- Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers

b) Employee benefit payable

¢} Security deposit payable

Total Other Curvent financial liabilities

Pravisions

Non-current

Proviston for Gratuity {Refer note 29)
Total Non-current Provisions
Current

Provision for Gratuity (Refer note 29)

Provision for compensated absences
Total Current Provisions

Other current liabilities

#) Contract liabilities (Refer note 15)
{i) Customers balance in wallet
{(13) Deferred revenue

b) Statutory dues payable®

Total Other curvent labilities

* Statutory dues maimly includes tax deducted at source, goods and service tax, provident fund and employee state insurance.

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
451,28 164.83 54.00
451.29 164.83 54.00
146,57 210.58 50.29
146.57 210,58 50.29
0.79 0.79 -
0.79 0.79 -
598.64 376.19 104.29
—— — =
Asat Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
37.89 25.03 15,58
37.89 25.03 15.58
729 5.34 027
36.67 2022 829
43.96 25.56 8.56
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1,2021
684.34 451.76 340.79
9.44 11.95 13.47
£693.78 463.71 354.26
46.64 57.57 20.97
46.64 57.57 20.97
740,42 521,27 375.23
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(b)

Revenue from Operations

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaporesation of the Company’s revenue from operations:

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
HCHENTE March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Sale of services
Revenue from Merchant Selutions 8,39938 6,006.34
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of traded goods 810 12.13
Total revenue from operations §,407.48 6,018.47
Note:
Refer Note 34 for transactions with related parties,
Revenue on the basis of geographical location
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
India 8,404.10 6,016.07
Outside India 3.38 2.40
Total revenue from operations 8,407.48 Gﬂiﬂaﬁ
Timing of revenue recognition
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Services rendered at a pont in time 839938 6,006.34
Goods Transferred at a point in time 8.10 12.13
Total revenue from operations 2240‘?.48 6,018.47
Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contracts assets, and contract liabilities from contracts with customers,
Asat As at
March 31, 2022 April 1,2021
Trade receivables [Refer note &(ii}] 443.28 140.75
Contract assets [Refer note 6(v1)] 37997 208.94
Contract habilines [Refer note 14] (451.76) (340.79)

Trade receivables are non-interest beaning and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. During the year ended March 31, 2023, Rs. 165.28 millions (March 31, 2022 - Rs.

55.63 millions) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade recervables. (refer note 22)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's rights to consideration for services completed but not billed at the reporting date, The contract assets are

transferred to the receivables when the rights become unconditional

The contract liabilities relates to payments received to be adjusted against either provision of service or refundable to customer on request on fulfilment of defined

requirements,

Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

Fapduius March 31,2023 March 31,2022
16,1 Finance Income
Interest income on;
- Bank deposits at amortised cost 361.57 230.68
- Loan to subsidiaries 2071 -
- Income tax refund 2.68 1.05
- Unwinding of discount on security deposits paid at amortised cost 249 0.47
Total Finance [ncome (A) 387.45 232.20
16.2 Other Income
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 0.02 0.00
Rent warver on lease habilities (refer note 30) - 1.80
Fair value gain/{loss) on Mutual fund mvestments a1 fair value through profit or loss (2.23) 042
Profit on sale of Mutual fund investments 5.02 L
Income from Business Support Services (refer note 32) - 12.86
Miscellancous Income 255 1.02
Total Other Income (B) 536 16.10
Grand Total (A+B) 392,81 24830
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17

20

21

22

Cost of Merchant Soluti

Parttculiits For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Cost of Merchant Solutions 6,394.32 4,738.10
6,394.32 4,738.10
Purchase of traded goods
ik For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Traded goods { Packing Material) [Refer note 7) 41.58 12.82
41.58 12,82
Increase in inventories of traded goods
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
As at the end of the year
Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer note 7) (12.13) (4.34)
As at the beginning of the year
Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer note 7] 4.34 222
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories of Traded Goods (1.79) (2.12)
Employee benelits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,429.47 812.64
Contribution to provident and other funds 33.03 9.82
Share Based Payment Expense {refer note 31) 458.60 32380
Gratuity expense (refer note 29) 14.06 870
Staff welfare expenses ATTT 15.53
1,972.33 1,170.49
Depreciation and amortization exp
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipments (refer note 3) 67.41 21.67
Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 4) 392,13 10.30
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 30) 140.00 30.14
246.54 62.11
Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Rent (refer note 30) 8.11 0.57
Power and Fuel 12.62 370
Rates and Taxes 5.13 447
Marketing Expenses 175.22 221.63
Insurance .52 364
Repair and Maintenance 23.54 16.44
Travelling and Conveyance 26.86 539
Server and Communication Costs 266.68 148,96
Payment Gateway Charges 47.74 47.82
Warehousing Management expenses 305.85 136.24
Qutsourced Support Cost 74.53 65.61
Telephone and Internet Charges 791 iz
Legal and Professional Fees 111.64 54.01
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets written off - 041
Payment to Auditor (Refer note below) 525 2.60
Recruitment Charges 17.14 3462
Recoverables written off 12.86 0.55
Bad Debts written off 0.84 2.06
Provision for Doubtful Debts (net} 165.28 55.63
Provision for Doubtful Recoverables 43.58 8.30
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense (refer note 27) - 1.06
Facility Expenses 2043 357
Miscellaneous Expenses 6.16 2.59
Total 1,345.89 §23.08
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24,

24.2

25

Note
(i) Payment to auditors:

Statutory Audit Fees 520 240
For Other Services - 0.:20
Cut of Pocket Expenses 0.05 0.00
525 2.60
* Fees of Rs. Nil million (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 1.20 million) for buyback certification has been charged to Securities Premiumn as part of buyback expenses.
Finance costs
Particulurs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Interest at amortised cost
- Term Loan 3.05
- Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 30) 4574 9.03
- Bank Overdraft 46,22 -
Bank Charges 0.94 0.37
92.90 12.45
Exceptional items
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
Wi March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Amortisation of Intangible assets [Refer Note 4] 120.00 -
Provision for impairment in value of Investment in subsidiaries [Refer Note 6(i)] 124.68 -
Provision for impairment in value of Investmient in associate [Refer Note 5] 111.60
356.28 -
Components of Other Comprehensive Ineome (OC1)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
' March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Re-measurement (foss)/gain on defined benefit plans (2.02) (2.82)
Gam/{loss) on sale of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCI (19.90) -
Changes in fair value of equity & preference mstruments carried at FVTOCI (54.75) ¥
(76.67) (2.82)

(Loss)/Earning per share (EPS)

Basic eamings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted
earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

" For the year ended For the year ended
EARRAT Tt Marchy.‘il, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
Total profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity sharcholders Rs. Millions (1,641.23) (549.35)
Weighted average number of equity shares for ealculating Basic EPS Numbers 20,17,866 16,90,855
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS Numbers 20,17,866 16,90,855
Basic EPS [Nominal value Rs. 10 per share (March 31, 2022 - Rs. |0 per share]] Rs. (813.35) (324.90)
Diluted EPS [Nommnal value Rs, 10 per share {(March 31, 2022 - Rs. 10 per share)] Rs. (813.35) (324.90)
Basic EPS for the year 2021-22 including effects for rights issue Rs. NA (319.41)
Basic EPS for the year 2021-22 including effects for rights issue Rs. NA (319.41)

There are potential equity shares as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 in the form of stock options issued. As these are antidilutive, they are ignored in the

calculation of diluted loss per share and accordmgly the diluted loss per share 15 the same as basic loss per share
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Significant ing jude i and i
The prep of the financial requires o make i and P that affect the reported of P assets and liabilities,
and the ing discl and the discl of conti liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require & material adjustment to

1p

the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Judgements
[n the process of applying the ac ing policies, has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the gnised in the financial
Elatements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with venewal and termination options - Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, topether with any perinds covered by an option to extend the lease if it is bly certain to be
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. Afler the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or nat to

exercise the option to renew of (o lerminate (2.5, ion of significant leasehold impr or significant customisation to the leased asset).
The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease term for leases of corp offices and housi ilities with shorter llable period (i.e., three to five years). The
Company typically exercises ils option to rensw for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on operaticns if a repl asset is not readily available, The renewal

periods for leases with longer non-cancellable periods (e, 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease term as these are ot reasonably certain 1o be exercised. Furthermore, the
periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term anly when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised.

Estim:tes and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of i) inty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
of assers and liabilities within the next financial year are described below The Company based its prions and esti on p ilable when the financial
were prepared. Existing ci and I about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the

Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Tmpairment of Non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating umit exceeds its recoverable amount, which 15 the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation 15 based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset, The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model, The cash fows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is 1ot yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount

15 sensitive 1o the discount rate used for the DCF madel as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrap lation purp These esti are most relevant to
dwall and other i bies with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

Share Based Payments

Employees of the company receive remuneration in the form of share based | tr hereby empl render services as ideration for equity i (equity-settled

transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of enuity-settled transactions is measured using the fair value method. The cumulative expense recognized

for equity-settled jons at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity

instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period rep the in lative exp gnized as at the

beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratity plan and the present value of the gratuity bligation are d ined using ial valuati An actuarial valuation involves making various

assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
Ived in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to chang in these pions. All pticns are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans op d, the iders the interest rates of govemment bonds in

= b i with the ies of the post-employment benefit obligati

“The mortality rate is based on publicly availabl lity table . The lity table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increnses and gratuity

Increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 29.

Fair value measurement of fnancial instruments

Whea the Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
viluation techniques meluding the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markels where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement 1s required
i establishing fair values. Jud inchude ions of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments,

Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Propesty, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment. When
sipnificant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is perfarmed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equip as a repl if the recopnition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Capital work m progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on.all property plant and equig are provided on a written-down value method based on the estimated useful life of the asset. The management has estimated the useful lives
and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based en 's of their respecti ic useful lives. The residual values, useful
lives and methods of dep ion of property, plant and g are reviewed at each fi inl year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropri Depreciation on the assets purchased
during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expecied from its use or dispesal. Any gain of loss arising on Derecognition of the asset (calculated as the diff t the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

The Company reviews its carrying value of i carried at
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.
Impairment of goodwill

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future
operating results and growth rate and anticipated Future ic and regulstory conditions. The esti d cash flows are developed using intemnal forecasts, The discount rate used for the
CGU's represent the weighted average cost of capital based on the historical market returns of comparable companies.

Loss all e on trade re bl

The Company uses a provision matrix to ealeulate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due of various customers that have similar loss
patterss (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letiers of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision matrix is initially based on the
Company's historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experi with forward-looking infe ion, For instance, if forecast
i (i.e., gross d ic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing secior, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking esti are analysed, The of the
correlation betwesn historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in ci and of
forecast economic conditions. The Company’s b | credit loss experi and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
The Company considers & financial asset in default when cantractual payments are |80 days past due. However, in cortain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset (o be in
default when intemal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the ding contractual in full before taking into account any eredit enhancements
held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no ble exp of ing the | eash flows.

4 1k

or more frequently when there is indication for impai 1f the ble amount is less than

cost

utiong
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Details of CSR Expenditure
Particulars

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year

¢) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2023:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
11} On purposes other than (i) above

d) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2022,

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
i) On purposes other than (i) above

€) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:

i) Contribution to Public Trust
ii) Contribution 1o Charitable Trust
1ii) Unspent amount in relation to:
« Ongoing project
- Other than ongoing project

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006
The Company, has during the year, initiated the process of identification of its suppliers rendering their status under The Micro, Small and Medi [
Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to smount unpaid as at the year end along with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have been provided in the

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
- 106
- 106
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
- 1.06
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
= 1.06
Enterprises Devel

books of accounts. Based on the mformation with the Comp

Particulars

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

Interest due 1o suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at year end

Prineipal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
day durmyg the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year

Interest due and payabl d ppli i d under
MSMED Aet, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

there are foll

ing principle/interest amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises,

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at April 1, 2021

2517

347
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29 Employee Benefits
A. Defined Contribution Plans
The Company makes contribution towards Provident Fund and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible employees.
The Company has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Facticoinrs For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Employer's contribution to Prowident fund and pension schemes 24,07 9.81
Employer's contribution to Employees State Insurance 0.00 0.01
Employer's contribution to Employees National Pension System 8.96 -
Total 33.03 9.82
B. Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity:
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific
benefit, The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15
days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2 million. The same is
payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit
credit method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures cach unit separately to build
up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rate used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
The Company has a unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan.
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and gnised in the bal
sheet for the respective plans:
(i) Benefit liability
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 3035 15.85 9.24
On account of acquisition of subsidiary - 317 -
Interest cost 220 1.29 0.62
Current service cost 11.85 741 6.08
Actuarial (loss)/gain on obligation
- Demographic assumptions - (1.56) 0.05
- Fimancial assumptions (0.15) 16,03 (0.07)
- Experience adjustment 2.18 (11.65) 0.08
Benefits paid (1.26) (0.20) (0.15)
Present value of obligation at the closing of the year 45.18 3035 15.85
(ii) Gratuity Cost recognised in the St t of Profit and Loss:-
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Current service cost 11.85 741
Net interest on net defined benefit habality / (asset) 2.21 1.29
Expense recognised in the § t of Profit and Loss* 14.06 8.70
(i) Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Comprehensive Income:-
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Actuarial (gains} / losses
- change in financial assumptions - (1.56)
- change n demographic assumplions (0.15) 16.03
- experience variance (1.e Actual expenience vs assumptions) 218 (11.65)
2.02 2.82
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(Al

(iv) The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

(v

—

{vi)

As at As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021

Discount rate 7.36% 7.26% 6.76%
Future salary increase 10.00% 10.00% 6.00%
Average expected future working hife (years) 26.59 2767 2836
Retirement age (years)
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disabiliy®
Withdrawal rate (per annum}

- Up to 30 years 30.00% 30.00% 3.00%

- From 31 years to 44 years 28.00% 28.00% 2.00%

- From 44 years to 58 years 25.00% 25.00% 1.00%

sIndian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Impact of the change in discount rate

a) Impact due to inerease of 0.50 % (0.88) (0.58)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 091 0.6l
lmpact of the change in salary increase

a) Impact due to mcrease of 0.50 % 0.76 0.50
bb) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (0.74) (0.49)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as & result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit abligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would oceur
in isolation of one another.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within the next |2 months (next annual reporting period) 7.29 534
Between 2 and 5 years 2386 16.07
Between 5 and 10 years 14.03 8.94
Beyond 10 years - -
Total expected payments 45.18 3035
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30 Leascs
Company as a Lessee
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases' using the modified retrospective approach from April 1, 2021. On adoption, the company has recognised a right-of-
use assct and corresponding lease liability of Rs 2529 miilion
The Company has lease contracts for warehouses and office spaces used in its operations, These generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years.. The
Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets, There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination
options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below
The Company also has certain leases contracls for office premises and certain facilities with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office premises and
certain facilities with low value The Company applies the *short-term Jease” and 'lease of low-value assets” recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Tatal

As at April 1,2021 2529
Additions Consequent to Business combination of Subsidiary 149.43
Additions 208,07
Deletions -
Depreciation expense (30.14)
As at March 31,2022 352.65
Additions 676.81
Deletions -
Depreciation expense (140.00)
As at March 31,2023 §89.46
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the mo during the year:

Particulars Tatal

As at April 1,2021 24.77
Additions Consequent to Busiess combination of Subsidiary 153.74
Additions 206.60
Deletions -
Aceretion of interest 9.03
Payments (35.31)
Rent concession* 1.80
As at March 31,2022 360.63
Additions 653.84
Deletions -
Acerenon of interest 4574
Payments (148.08)
As at March 31,2023 912,13

* During the year, the Company has availed rent concessions of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - 1.80 million) from lessors on account of COVID-19
and recorded the same as other income in the statement of profit and loss consequent to amendment in Ind AS 116 “Leases” (Refer note 16.2).

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As at April 1,2021

Lease Liabilities {Non-current) 758.67 152.05 16,75
Lease Liabilities (Current) 15346 208.58 802
Total 91213 360.63 24.77

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 38,
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities 15 9.15%, with maturity between 2023-2032,

The following are the recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars As at March 31,2023 Asat March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 140.00 30.14
Interest expense on lease habilities 4574 9.03
Expense relating to short-term leases ( included in other expenses) 811 0.57
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) 247.83 113.99
Totul amount recognised in profit or loss 441.68 153.73

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company's busi needs. Manag t ises significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and lermination options are reasonably certain to be exercised (refer note 26).
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Bigfoat Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Standalone financial Tor the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated

32 Currvent Tax and Deferred Tax

Prowision for current tax 15 not required to be made as the Company has business losses during the year and also has brought forward losses. Since, it is not probable that the Company will generate
future taxable profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognized on 1ax losses.

33 Commitments and Contingent liabilities

a. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital sceount and not provided for: Nil

b. Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debis:
Period to which the | Forum where the dispute is
Name of the statute WNature of the dues Amount itz pendin
Income Tax Act, 1961 [Refer Footnote (i}] Tnicome Tax 2,50 AY 2018-19 g “‘T’“::"“:"““”‘““’”
Footnote (i): Order of TDS Officer dated March 30, 2022 u/s 201 & 201(1A) was issued having demand of Rs. 2,50 million by INT TAX 1{1 n2) De]ln The Compan)r has filed an Appeal against this
Demand with CIT(A). The 2 bali that the company has good chances of success in the above mentioned matter and hence, no provision is Y.

(This space fas been intentionally left blank)




Bigloot Retall Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UT2900DL201IPTC225614

Maes to Standalone Ananciul statenients for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts ure in Ry, millions unless otherwise stuted

34 Related Party Transuctions
A- Name of Related parties and related party relationship
Heluted Parties under Ind AS 24
Subaldiarics and Assockate

Shiprocket Pie Ltd. Whollv-owned Subsidiory
Shiprocket DMCC Step-down Subsidiary (Whelly Owned Subsidiary of Shiprocket Ple Lid )
hiprocket Arabia for Init ion T I Step-down Subsidisry (Wholly Cwned Subsidiary of Shiprockel DMCC)
Wigzo Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary Compeny {w.e.f. December 31, 2021 )
Wigso Technologies Cansdn Ine. Step-down Subsidiery (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Wigze Technologies Private Limited)
Picker Technnbogivs Private Limited Subsidiary Company (w.el June 30, 2022 )
Shipsrocket O P b Lfimerly Arvind liteimet Liamited) Wholly-owned Subsidiory { w.ef, October 31, 2022 )
Lopibricks Technolapes Prvine Linsted Associate Company
Hey Manugement Personnel
Suahil Gioel Prirector and Chiel Esceutive Olficer
Gamam Kapoor [irector
Rajiun Jiterdea Mehra Momines Director
Pankaj Mukkar Momime: Director
Arjun Singh Ravinder Siglh Sctn MNominen Dircctor
Vadhehi Ravindran MNominee Lirecior
Hishant Chandry MNon-Exesutive Divecior (w.e £ September 16, 2022)
Kumar Fanmay Chiael Francial Olfieer
Ml Mashirn Company Secretary (resigned woel June 2, 2023)
Drevpa Kopoor Company Secretwry (we. f. Aupust 29, 2023)
B. Details of Transactions and Bulunces with Related pirtivs:
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
AR Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022
41 Investment made during the vear
Unquoted shares
Shiprocket Pl Lid 60,78 69,24
Wigan Technobogies Privine Limiled 16002 689,98
Fopibricks Technologes Privite Limited = 1160
Pickrr Technologics Private Limited 10,073.14 -
Shiprocket Omuni Privete Limited {foemerly Arvind Intemet Limited) 1.680.21 %
Contribution by Parent Entity (Share Based Puyment options to employees of Subsidiaries)*
Tickrr Technologics Private Limited 4401 -
Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerdy Arvind Intermet Limited) 35638 -
{1} Advance pald for Investment In subsequent years *
Pickrr Technalogics Privite Liniited 300,00 -
= The sawee s been paid ax an advance Tn cael af the tiree provoters of Pickee Technologies
Private Limited for purchase of their veanaining stabe i the subsiddiary in the swbsequent years which
will b aaclpusted in equead progartion e 2023 o June 2024,
(1) Louns given during the year
ek Technologies Privine Limated 48647 3
Shiprocket Omuni Privase Limited (foomerly Arvind Interoet Limied) 3245 -
(iv) Interest Incime on Loans given during the yeor
Tickar Teelmologies Private Li 2020 =
Shiprocket Omuni Privase Lamived {foomerky Arvind Intermet Limued) 051 -
v} Buy back of share cupital including seourities premilum
Saahil Gioed - 18573
Lrautan Eupoor - 22289
ivip Isue of share capital
- L]
Gt Kapoar - am
ok Remuneration of key miwnagerial persannel®
Haahl Gewd 1427 10496
Giautam Kupoor 1487 HB4
Kumar Tumnay 20.25 Y45
Nidli Mishra 092 066
*teclwles enplover's contrifaition fo gravident find and graminy
(viti}  Reimbursement of Expenses
hiprocket Arshio for 1 ion Technology 624 1365
(i) Amount recoverediwritten off during the year
Shiprockel Arsbia fur | ion Technology - 294
(x}  Revenue from Merchant Solutions
Wigeo Technologies Private Limited 476 4
(i) Ineome from Buslness Support Serviees
shiprosket Arshia for Tnk ion Technok - 1286
{xn)  Cost of Merchant Solutivns
Picker Tecluwlogies Prvate Limited 1588 =
(sir)  Marketing cxpenscs
Wigeo Technologies Privawe Limited 200 £
C. Outstunding Balancea:
Asat Asal As at
Parkoars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April1, 2021
{A) Payable at year end
(i) Other Financial Habilities
Suabul Gool = 1.21 118
Chantium Kapoar - o6l 052
Kumi Timnnian . 113 =
Mudlu bishira . i 004
(i) Trade payables
Preker Technalages I'n 3L - -
{B)  Receivables ut yeur end
(i) Interest Receivalie
Pickrt Techaalogies Private Linited 1818 . -
Shiprecket Camumi Private Limated (Gormerky Arvinad Tntenet Limited) 046 = -
(i) Loans
Piekrr Technologies Private Linited . 48647 # %
Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerby Arving Intervet Linvited) 3245 - -
(i) Trade Receivables
Wigzen Technologies Private Limited 326
(i) Other Financiul assets
Shiprocket Ple Lid 0.1 021 021
Shiprockel Arabia for nf Teehrubigy 1695 23.57 -
Wi Technologics Private Limited 1.50 . -

O, Terms and Conditions of transactbons with reluted partices
The sales to-and purchases from nelated partics are mode on ferms equivabent to those that prevail in arm's lenglh transnetions. Cutstanding balances st the year-end sne unsecured
arud ititerest Tree and serlement seeurs in cash, Thens have been no guarantees provided or reecived for any related party receivables or payables.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614
Motes to Standalone fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al amounis are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated

35  Segment Information

The Company is engaged in providing Merchant solution services m a simgle | Based on "M Approach”, as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Seg: the Chiel Op
Decision Maker (CODM) eval the per and all resources based on the analysis of performance of the Company as a whole lis operations are, th , considered
constilule a single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segmenis
As per Ind AS 108 - Operating 8 is, where the financial report ins both the lidated financial of a parent a5 well a5 the parent's separale financinl

T ion is required only in the lidated i ial A dingly, no segment inf ion is disclosed in these dalone fi ial of the Company.

36 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, including those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values:

Financial Instruments by category

The carrving value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 were as follows:

Prsticulirs Nate No. Amortised Cost Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through Carrying amount
Profitorloss  Other ComprehensiveIncome
Assets:
Invesiments (non-current) 13,009.15 - 4698 13,056.13
Other financial Assets (non-current) 53132 - - 531.32
Investments (current) - 208.20 - 208.20
Trade receivables 626,98 - - 626.98
Cash and cash equivalents 489,08 - - 489.08
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 7599 - - 75.99
Loans (current) 51892 - - 51892
Other financial Assels (current) 7.223.20 - - 7,223.20
Total 22.A474.64 208,20 46,98 22,729.82
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities {(non-current) k1) 75867 - - 758,67
Borrowings (current) 1241 1,718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities {(current) 30 153,46 - - 153.46
Trade Payables 12(i) 1,381.93 - - 1,381.93
Other Financial Liabilities 12(iii) 598.64 - - 598.64
Total 4,610.77 - - 4,610.77

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 were as follows:
Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income

Assels:
Investments {non-current) 759,28 - 39.20 79847
Ohther financial Assets (non-current) 9,403,588 - - 089388
Tnvestments (current) - 55.04 - 55,04
Trade receivables 443.28 - - 44328
Cash and cash equivalents 180,71 - - 180,71
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6306 - - 63.16
Loans (current) - - - -
Other linancial Assets {current) 3,208.78 - - 3,208.78
Total 14,549.10 55.04 39.20 14,643.34
Linbilities:
Lease Liabilites (non-current} k] 152.05 - - 152,05
Lease Liabilities (current) n 20 58 - - 208.58
Trade Payables 12{u) RE3 84 - - 183,84
Other Financial Liabiiles 12011} 376.19 - - 376.19
Total 1,620.66 - - 1,620.66

The carrying value and (air value of finaneial instruments by catepones as of April 1, 2021 were as (llows:

Financinl assetsfiabilities at fair value through

. i i n
Farticulars HES, e Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Inconie g

Assels:

Invesiments {non-current} 61} 005 - - 0.05
Other financial Assets (non-current) BHlvi) 1,U86.15 - - 1,086.15
Trade receivables afii) 14075 - - 140.75
Cash and cash equivalents (i) G6A3 - - 66,43
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents Gliv) 73978 - - 739.78
Other financial Assets {current) Bivi) 28345 - - 28385
Total 2,317.02 - - 1,317.02
Linbilities:

Lease Liabilities (non-current} 30 1675 - - 16.75
Borrowings {current) 12(1) 63.64 - - 6364
Lease Liabilities (current) 30 #.02 - - 8.02
Trade Payables 125y 52252 - - 522.52
Other Financial Linbilities 12} 104.29 - - 104.20

Total T15.22 - - 71522
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a7

The following methods/assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The management assessed that cash and cash equival trade receivables, trade payables, bank drafis and other current lisbilities approxi their carrying largely due to the
shor-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the quoted investments are based on price quotations at the reporting date. The fair value of unqualed i and other financial liabilities a5 well as other non-current
linancial liabilities is esti d by di ing liture eash Nows using rates currenily available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. [n addition to being sensitive to a

reasonably possible change in dve forecast cnsh Nows or the discount ate, the fair value of the equily instruments is also sensilive (o a reasonably possible change in the growth rates. The
valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a renge
of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fuir values of the ungquoted equily shares have been estimated using o DCF model. The valuation requires management 1o make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including
forecast cash Nlows, discount rate, credil risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair
value for these unquoted equity invesiments.

Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair valug is ised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measuremenl as a whole,

Level |: This level of ierarchy includes financial assels that are d by reft 1o quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inpuls, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for such items, directly or
indirecthy.

Level 3 This level of hierarchy includes items d using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from obsarvable current market transactions in the
same instruments nor based on available market data.

Specific valuation techniques used to value fi i is di d cash flow analysis.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities;

Fair value measurement hievarchy Tor financial assets and Habilities as at March 31, 2023:

Financial asscts/linbilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 3)
Assels:
Investments (non-current) afi) 13,009.15 - 46.98 13,056.13
Otbeer financial Assels (mon-current) Givi) 531.32 - - 53132
Investments {current) i) - 208.20 - 208.20
Trade receivables G} (2694 - - 626,98
Cash and cash equivalems iy AR08 - - 489.08
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents fliv) 7599 = - 75.99
Loans (current) 6(y) 5i892 - - 518.92
Orther finangial Assels (current) Glvi) 7.223.20 o - 7,223.20
Total 22.474.64 208.20 46.95 22,729.82
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities {(non-current) 30 758,67 - - 758.67
Barrowings (current) 12(i) 1,718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities (current} 30 153.46 - - 153.46
Trade Payables 12(ii) 1,381.93 - v 1,381.93
Other Financial Linbililies 12(iii) 398.64 - - 598.64
Total 4,610.77 - - 4,610.77
Fair value measurement hierarchy for finpncial nssets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023:
Particulars Mote No. Amortised Cost Financia) assets/Tiabilities at fair value {hrough Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inpuis
(Level 1) (Level 3)

Assets:
Investments (non-current) i) 759,28 = 39.20 798.47
Other linancial Assets (non-current) Givi) 4,593.88 - - 9,893 88
Invesiments (current) Gii} - 55.04 - 55.04
Trade recervables G} 44328 - - 443,28
Cash and cash equivalents iy 18071 - - 180,71
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents vy 63.16 - - 63.16
Onher financial Assels (current) 6ivi) 3208 78 - - 3,208.78
Total 14,549.10 55.04 39,10 14,643.34
Linbilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) n 152.05 - - 152,05
Lease Liabilities {current) 30 208,58 - - 208.58
Trade Payables 12(i B3 K4 - - #83.84
Other Financial Liabililies 12(iin) 376.19 - - 376.19

Total 1,620.66 - - 1,620.66
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Fair value measurement hievarchy for [ inl assets and liabilities as at April 1, 2021;
Particulars Noké N, Anioitlsed Cost Financial assets/liabilities at Mair value through Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
nctive markeis inputs
(Level 1) (Level 3)

Assets:
Invesiments {non-current) 6(i) 0.05 - - 0.05
Other fnancial Assels (non-current) G{vi) 1,086.15 - - 1,086.15
Trade receivables afiiy 140,75 - - 140.75
Cash and cosh equivalents G{iin) 66,43 - - 66.43
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents Gliv) 739.78 - - 739.78
Other financial Assets {current) 6{vi) 283.85 - = 283.85
Total 2,317.02 - = 2,317.02
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) 30 16,75 - - 16.75
Borrowings {current) 12(i) 63.64 - - 63.64
Lease Liabilities (current) 30 §.02 . - 8.02
Trade Payables 12{u) 52252 - - 52252
Other Financial Liabililies 12¢iin) 104,29 - = 104.29
Tatal 71522 - - 715.22
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement 15 as follows
Particulars ey i

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance al the beginning of the year 39.20 -
Addition duning the year 62.54 .20
Fair value (lossWgain on financial instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (54.75) -
Balance at the end of the year 46.95 39.20
Asof March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April |, 2021, the fair value of cash and bank bal trade receivables, other financial assets and liabilities, borrowings, lease fiabilities, rade

pavables approximate their carrying amaount largely due to the nature of these msiruments,

(Vs space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(2]

{b]

(i

)

{3

The Company's activities are exposed to variety of financial nisk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Company's senior the of these risks, The
Company’s senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Company reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price nisk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, debt and equity investments and
derivative financial instruments.

The ivity anal inn the foll i sections relate to the position as ot March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-resi bligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of
foreign operations.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022 and Apnil 1, 2021,

(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fi ial instrurn will f1 because of changes in market interest rates. As majority of the financial assets and lighilities of
the company are exther non-interest beaning or fixed mterest beanng mstruments, The company's net exposure 1o interest risk is negligible.

{it) Foreign Currency Risk

The il ion 10 foreign y exch rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or loss, where any transaction references more than one or where Miabulities are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the company. The comy fertal tions d inated in foreign currencies and thus it is exposed o exchange rate
fluctuations, The company hes a treasury feam which evaluates the impact of foreign exch rate fl ions by mng its exp to exchange rate risks and advises the management of any
material adverse effect on the company. The company's net ex to foreign nisk is negligibl

(iii} Equity Risk

The Company’s listed and non-histed equity securities are susceptible 1o market pnee nsk ansing from uncentainties about future values of the investment securities, The Company manages the equity
price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Comparty’s senior management on a regular basis.
The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity mvestment decisions

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit sk from its
operating &ctivities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchang, ions and other financial i

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and conti 1 itoring the credi hiness of to

which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Particulars Leat tian 6 By authe:-l 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

months year
As at March 31, 2023 682.34 1151 115,43 - - 509.32
As at March 31, 2022 44383 3572 86,49 0.64 - 586,68
As at Apnl 1, 2021 144 81 40.72 43.00 - - 22853
* The ageing of trade receivables does not include expected credit loss.
Expeeted credit loss for trade receivables using simplified approach Asat As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Gross carrying amount 909,32 5B6.68 228.53
Expected credit losses {Loss allowance provision) (282.34) (143.40) (87.78)
Carrying amount of trade receivables {net of impairment} 626.98 443,28 140.75
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the nisk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without i ini ptable losses, The Company’s objective is to, at all

times maintain optimum levels of liquidity 1o meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash systen, It

adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an aptimised cost,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments:

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying amount On Demand Up to | Year More than 1 year Total
Borrowings 1,718.08 1,718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities 912.12 - 153.46 758.67 912.12
Trade payables 138193 - 1,381.93 - 1,381.93
Other financial liabilities 598.64 - 598,64 - 598.64
Total 4,610.77 1,718.08 2,134,03 758.67 4,610.77
As at Mareh 31, 2022 Carrying amotint On Demand Up to 1 Year More than 1 year Total

Lease Liabilities 360.63 - 20858 152.05 360.63
Trade payables 883.84 - 883,84 - 883.84
Other financial liabilities 376.19 - 376.19 - 376.19
Tutal 1,620.66 - 1,468.61 152.05 1,620.66
As at April 1, 2021 Carrying amount On Demand Up to 1 Year More than 1 year

Borrowings 63 64 - 63.64 -

Lease Liabilities 2477 B.02 16.75

Trade payables 52252 52252

Other financial liabilities 104.29 - 104.29

Tatal 71522 - 69847
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39 Capital Management
For the purpose of the pany's capital t, capital includes issued equity capital, instruments entirely equity in nature, securities premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company The primary objective of the company s capital t is to maximise the shareholder value.
The company's objectives when managing capital are to
+ Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for ather stakeholders; and
+ Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The company monitors capital by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part of this review, The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans, lease liabilities and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and liquid

investments.
4 Asat As at Asat
Particul;

R Note March31,2023  March31,2022 April 01,2021
Borrowings 12(1) 1,718.08 5 63.64
Lease Liabilities 30 91212 360.63 24.77
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 6(iii) (489.08) (180.71) (66.43)
Less: Investment in mutual funds 6(i) (208.20) (55.04) -
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6{iv) (75.99) (63.16) (739.78)
Net Debt {(A) 1,856.93 61,71 {717.80)
Equity Share Capital 10 589.96 567.78 384.66
Share Consideration pursuant to Merger 40 0.12 0.12 -
Other equity 11{i) 18,918.42 13,404.39 906.74
Total Equity (B) 19,508.50 13,972.29 1,291.40
Capital and net debt (C) 21,365.43 14,034.00 573.60
Capital Gearing Ratio (%) (C/A) ) 8.69% 0.44% WNot Applicable since

company does not
have Debt as at year
end
In order to achieve this overall objective, the company’s capital 12 amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial ts hed to the i t:
bearing loans and barrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrawings. There have been no breaches m the financial of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 01, 2021,

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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40 Business Combination of Glaueus Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited (Ind AS 103)

The Board of Directors of the Company, in its meeting held on March 13, 2022 had approved a Scheme of Arrangement in the nature of merger under section 230 to 240 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 b the company (“Transferee Company™) and Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited (“Transferor Company™), a subsidiary of the Company and their respective sharcholders
and creditors ("Scheme”), On May 30, 2022, the Company filed the scheme with Hon'ble Delhi bench of Mational Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"). The appointed date for the Scheme is April 1, 2022,

The NCLT approved the Scheme via an order dated April 28, 2023, In aecordance with the Scheme, Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) has been merged with the Company,
effective from April 1, 2022,

These transactions have been treated as business eombination and the Company has applied pooling of interest method to account for such business combination, Based on the requirements of Appendix C to Ind
AS - 103, the Company has restated financial information appearing in these financial in respect of previous period as if the business combination had d from the actual date of the combination in
Transferor company 1.¢. February 10, 2022

The details of Fair Value of assets and linbilities acquired of the Transferor company as on February 10, 2022 has been provided below:

Particulars Amount
ASSETS
Not-current assels
Propesty, plant and equipment 3228
Other Intangible assets 121.49
Right-of-use assets 149.43
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 14.45
Mon-current Tax Assets (net) 16,92
Total non-currvent assels 334.57
Current assets
Inventories 587
Financial assets
(i) Investments 54.63
(ii) Trade receivables 84.44
(111} Cash and cash equivalents 5876
{iv) Bank balances other than (jii} above 014
(v) Other financial Assets 2824
Other current assets 5.76
Total current asscls 137.84
Total assets (A} 57141
LIABILITES
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Lease Liabulinies 110.54

Deferred tax liabiliy 0.80
Provisions 263
Total non-current liabilities 113,97
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
{i) Lease Liabilities 4320
{i1) Trade payables 8815
(1) Other Financial Liabilites 151.82
Provisions 0.54
Other current liabilities 10.49
Total current linbilities 294.20 |
Total liabilities {B) 408.17
Met Assets taken over C=(A-B) 164,24
Purchase Consideration paid

- Paid 1o Exit Stakeholders 690.21

- Additional Capital Infusion 5168
Share Consideration pursuant to merger (Equity shares to be issued tof
Shareholders of the Transf pany in fance with share exchang 012
ratio as per scheme approved with NCLT)
Total Consideration () 742.01
Goodwill Recognised (D-C) 571.77
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First time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the Company's first fi | prepared in dance with Ind AS considering the date of transition as at April 1, 2021,
For periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company prepared its financial in dance with dards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from lime to lime) and presentation requirements of Division I of

Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, (Non-Ind AS compliant Schedule TIT) [Indian GAAP].

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2023, together with the comparative period data as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2022, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as ar
April 1, 2021, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company i restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at April 1, 2021 and the financial statement as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2022,

Exemptions and exceptions availed
Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards allows first time adopters of Ind AS cenain optional icns and y ptions from the pective application of

certain Ind AS. The Group has applied the followng prions and mandatory ions in the ition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

A} Ind AS mandatory exemptions

A.l Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with provious GAAP (after
adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is cbjective evidence that those estimates were in error.
Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made esti for following iters in
accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP,
On assessment of estimates made under the Pravious GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise such estimates undsar Ind AS, as there is no
objective evidence of an error in those estimates. The estimates at Apnl |, 2021 and March 31, 2022 are consistent with those made for the same dates in aceordance with Indian GAAP apart
from the following item where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation:
- Impairment of trade receivables based on expected credit loss mode!
The estitmates used by the Company to present amount of trade receivables in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at April 1, 2021, the date of transition to Ind AS and as of March 31,
2022.

A.2 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109, financial i ively for
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows a first- time adopter tn ﬂpphf the de-
mwgmllon lequllements in Ind AS 109, financial i ively from a date of the entity's choosing, provided that the mformanon needed to apply Ind AS 109, financial
1o financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past tr'msacuons was obtained at the time of initially g for those ions. The Company has
elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109, financial mstruments, prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS,

A.3 Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made dering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109, financial instruments are met based on facts and circumstances
existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by ing its cc | cash flow ch istics only on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of
transition and if it is impracticable to assess el of modified time value of money i.e. the use of effective interest method, fair value of financial asset at the date of transition shall be the
new carrying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption applies for financial liabilities as well,

Applying a requirement is impracticable wh:n the entity cannot apply it after makmg every reawnable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply the chang pectively it

a) The effects oflhs pective appli or p are not d i s or

b) The p plication or requires prions about what s intent would have been in that period; or

¢} The F pplication or pectt requires significant of and it 15 impossible to distinguish ohjectively infi ion about those estimates that

existed at that time,

B) Ind AS optional exemptions

B.1 Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised
in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemption can also be used
for intangible assets covered by Ind AS-38 Intangible Assets.
For all classes of property, plant and equipment and intangibles asset existing as on April 1, 2021, ie, date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has used Indian GAAP carrying value as
deemed cost as permitted by Ind-AS 101. Accordingly, the net written down value (WDV) as per Indian GAAP as on April 1, 2021 has been considered as gross block under Ind AS for other
classes of property, plant and equipment,

B.2 Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
As per Ind AS 27, the Company has an option to value it5 in n subsidiaries and tates either at Previous GAAP Value or Fair value as deemed cost. The Company has opted for

Previous GAAP values for all the subsidiaries and jate as per exempii i on transition.

B.3 Business Combinations
The Company has availed the option to not apply Ind AS 103, retrospectively to b

that d prior to the transition date,

B.4 Fair value measurement of financial assets or linbilities at initial recognition
Ind AS 109 requires to intially ize financial assets and lishilities at fair value and if the fair value differs from transaction price, the difference is recognized as gain or loss. The Company

has elected to apply these requi of initial ition prospectively to 1ons entered on or after the date of transition.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Standplone Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
All amounts ave in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated

C) Reconciliations between previously reported Indian GAAP (IGAAP) and Ind AS

Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires an entity to reconcile equity, Balance Sheet and Statement of profit and loss for prior periods, The following tables

the from

hile Indian GAAP to Ind AS at the periods specified below.

Reconciliation of equity between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

Particulars Noles As at 31 March 2022 As at 1 April 2021
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per Previous GAAP 13,466.09 506,74
Add / (Less): Adj s on of to Ind AS:
(a) Impact of creation of ROU asset and Lease liability as per Ind AS 116 (13.15) -
(b) Provision for Credit note on expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 (48.97)
(¢) Fair value of Mutual funds as per FVTPL model as per Ind AS 109 0,42
Net adjustments (61.70) -
Total equity (shareholder's funds) as per Ind AS 13,404.39 906.74

Reconcilintion of Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2021 between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

D)
Particulars Notes IG‘T;;‘;’U?I;::HI::;d} Effects :;du:;silion | Amount as per Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 16,77 1637
Other Intangible assets 4 022 0.22
Right-of-use assets da - 25.29 2529
Financial assets
(1) Investments 6(i) 0.05 0.05
(i) Other financial assels B(vi) 1,086.67 (0.52) 1,086.15
‘Total non-current assets 1,103.71 24.77 1,128.48
Current assets
Inventories 7 222 222
Financinl assets
(i} Investments 6(1) - -
(ii) Trade receivables 6(ii) 140,75 140,75
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 6{iii) 12.02 66,43
(iv) Bank balances other than {iii) above 6{iv) 739.78 739.78
(v} Loans 6(v) = -
(vi} Other financial Assets 6(vi) 283.85 283.85
Current Tax Assets (net) 8 24.80 24.80
Other current assets 9 19.67 19.67
Total curvent assets 1,223.10 - 1,277.51
Total assets 2,326.82 24.77 1,405.99
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 1] 384.66 384.66
Other equity 11{1) 906,74 906.74
Total equity 1,291.40 - 1,291.40
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(i) - -
{ii) Lease Liabilities 30 - 16.75 16.75
Provisions 13 15.58 15.58
Total non-current liabilities 15.58 16.75 3233
Curvent liabilities
Financial linbilities
(i) Borrowings 12(i) 63.64 63.64
(i) Lease Linbilities 30 - 8.02 8.02
(iii) Trade payables 12(ii)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small T 347 347
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 519.05 519.05
(iv) Other Finaneial Liabilities 12(i) 49.89 104,29
Provisions 13 856 8.56
Other current liabilities 14 375.23 375,23
Total eurrent liabilities 1,019.84 8.02 1,082.26
Total equity and liabilities - 2,326.82 24,77 2,405.99
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E) Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

Amount as per

Effects of transition to

il Mstse IGAAP (Restated) Ind AS s
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 80.59 £0.59
Goodwill 4 57T 37117
Other Intangible assets 4 167.34 167.34
Right-of-use assets 4a - 352.65 315265
Investments in associaies 5 111.60 111.60
Financial assets
(1) Investments (i} 798,47 TIEAT
(i) Other financial assets Givi) 9.899.05 (517} 9,893.88
MNon-current Tax Assets (net) 8 19.47 19.47
Other non-current assets 9 11.99 11.99
‘Total non-current assets 11,666.27 34748 12,013.76
Current assets
Inventories 7 873 8.73
Financial assets
(i) Investments 6(i) 54.63 0,42 55.04
{ii) Trade receivables 6(ii) 492.26 {48.97) 443.28
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents Gt} 180.71 180.71
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 6(iv) 63.16 63.16
(v) Loans 6(v) " :
{wi) Other financial Assets 6(vi) 3,208.78 3,208.73
Current Tax Assets (net) 2 8347 8347
Other current assets o 107.88 107.88
Total current assets 4,199.61 (48.56) 4,151,05
‘Total assets 15,865.89 208.92 16,164.81
Amount as per Effects of transition to
IGAAP (Rest:ml) Ind AS e
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 56778 567.78
Share Consideration pursuant to Merger 40 012 012
Other equity L1t 13,466.00 (61.70) 13,404.39
Total equity 14,033.99 (61.70) 13,972.29
LIABILITES
Non-current liahilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12(i) - -
(ii} Lease Liabilities 30 - 152.05 152.05
Provisions 13 25.03 25.03
Total non-current liabilities 25.03 152,05 177.08
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1243) = =
(1) Lease Liabilities 30 208.58 208,58
(iii} Trade payables 12(ii)
(2} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2517 2517
(b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small P 858,67 358 67
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 12{iii) 376.19 376.19
Provisions 13 25.56 25,56
Other current liabilities 14 521.27 521.27
Total currvent liabilities 1,806.86 208.58 2,015.44
Tatal equity and labilities 15,865.88 298,92 16,164.81
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F} Reconcilintion of Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

Particulars Notes IG:‘::’":"I‘ A per“ Effects :J':;sm" L [ P per Ind AS
Income
Revenue from Operations 15 6,06745 (48.97) 601847
Other income 16 245.61 2.69 248.30
Total income (1) 6,313,06 (46,28) 6,266,77
Expenses
Cost of Merchant Soluticns 13 4,738.10 - 4,738.10
Purchase of traded goods 14 12.82 - 12.82
Increase in inventories of traded goods 19 (2.12) - (2.12)
Employes benefits expense 20 1,167.25 3.24 1,170.49
Finance costs 21 342 .03 1245
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 3L97 kLA 62.11
Other expenses 22 1,216.58 (393.50) §23.08
Total Expenses (11} 7,168.02 (351.09) 6,816.93
(Loss)Profit before exceptional items and tax (111=1-11) (854.96) 304.81 {550.16)
Exceptional items (IV) 241 - - -
(Loss)/Profit before tax (V=ITT+IV) (854,96) 304.81 (580.16)
Tax expense
Current tax - -
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - -
Deferred 1ax (0.80) (0.80)
Total Tax Expense (VI) (0.80) - (0.80)
{Loss)/Profit for the year (VII=V-VI) (854.16) 304.81 (549.35)
Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss): 242
(n) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(i) Re-measurement {loss)/zain on defined benefit plans - (2.82) (2.82)
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year {VIIT) - (2.82) (2.82;|
‘Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (IX=VII+VIII) 854.16] 301,99 552.17

Notes to the reconcilintion:

(i) Transition to Ind AS 116 "Leases"

Ths Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach wherein as on the Transition date the ROU Asset is equal to Lease liability. The right-of-use asset is subsequent]
preciated from the ement date o the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are

determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use assef is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-

measurements of the leass liability.

The lease liability 15 initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the date, di 1 using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate

cannot be readily determined, the Company's i Ib ing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

(i) Valuation of Security Deposits

As per Ind AS 109, all financial assets and liabilities are required to be d at their respective fair value, The interest free refundable security deposits are financial assets and are thus requirsd
to be measured at present value using an appropriate discount rate at the time of entering into lease agreement. The difference between the fair value and the transaction price has been recognised as
prepaid rent and is amortised over the period of the lease on straight-line basis, The prepaid rent has been added to Right of use asset in case where the same has been created on lease
arrangements, Subsequently, these security deposits have been d at d cost and the resultant inferest is d as finance income,

(iii) Remeasurements on defined benefit liability
Both under Previous GAAP and Ind AS the Company recognised costs related to post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuanal basis, Under Previous GAAP, actuanal gains and losses were
recognised in the Statement of profit or loss, however under Ind AS all actuarial gains and losses are ised in other comprehensive income.
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41 Ratio Analysis and its clements

Numerator Denominator
Ratio analysis and its clements March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Variance (%) Reason for Variance*
Current assets Current liabilitics
(a}  Current ratio 206 206 -0.22%
Taotal Debt Sharcholder's Equity Increased due to short term borrowings taken
{b)  Debt-cquity ratio 0.13 0.03 422 36%|during the year against FD's as per FD-0D
terms.
(Loss)/Eamings for | Debt serviee = Interest &
debt serviee = Met Lease Payments +
loss)iprofit aft Pri | Repa ts
(e} Debt service coverage ratio Lxc:rfml:m:l SR {0.99) {101 2.26%
|aperating cxpenses
increase in purchase of stock
(@) Inventory tumover ratio Costof goods sold | Average Inventory Sy {5 e :ﬁmm:h:‘;m in pui = of stoc
Net credit sales = Average Trade
{e}  Trade receivables wmover ratio Gross credit sales - |Receivabl 1124 14.77 <23 BR%
sales retm
Met credit purchases =| Average Trade Payables
Gross credit
(f)  Trade payablés mover ratio purchases - purchase 6,68 7.83 -14.66%
retum
Net sales = Total sales| Working capital = i < ki "
fe)  Met capital turmover ratio - sales retum Current assets - Current 1.72 282 -39.01%) :ec!um digtodas & ing captial
T uring the year.
liabilitics
i Met (LossyProfits [ Average Sharchalder’s
fhy  Retum on cquity ratio ferinxss Equity {0.10) (0,07) =41, 8454
; ; Met {Loss)Profit Net sales = Total sales -
() Net profit ratio i st (0.20) {0.09) =127 e e ot 6 s e during the
{Loss)Eamings Capital Employed = year,
" " ] ; before interest and [ Tangible Net Worth +
() Retrn on capital employed g o] Dekieis Haiad (0.07) {0.04) “90.87%
Tax Liahility
G Rotum e investment Intercst Inconse.on | Bank Deposits 004 0.03 17.50%
deposits with banks

*Ratios varianees have been explamed for anv change by more than 25% as compared to the previous yvear

(Thix space has been intentionally left blank)
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43

44

45

Other Statutory Information

) The Company docs not have any Benami property, whese any procecding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder

i) The Company has balance with the below-mentioncd companics struck off under scction 248 of Companies Act, 2013

Bal outstandin
Nature of tr i E

Name of struck off Company with struck-off el i
Company March 31,2023 | March 31,2022

Famham Enterprises Pyt Ltd, Kundan Power Products Pyt Ltd, ABPX Pharma Pyt Ltd, Medi Pearls, Paint fashion pvt Itd, Haridra Enterprises
Private Limited, Accessisolution Digital Marketing Pyt Ltd. DLB Group India Limited, Quidditas Farms Private Limited, Mynics Technologies Put,
Ltd.. Dircet Media Shoppy, P.K. Enterprises, Nearking India Py, Lid, Routeger Technologies Put. Lid, Rushi herbal, RD Overscas, Fabrify Studio
Private Limited, Gilbard Apparcl Pyt Ltd, Maya Jennifer Teas (Pvt) Lid, DLB GROUP INDIA Limited, Studio Gulaal, itan Tech Indis Pyt Ltd, Jindal
Brother, Dailin Just2Fun Pyt Ltd, Darshan Enterprisce, GXC Interactive Technologies Pyt Ltd, Anandha Vanji Enterprises Pvt, Lid, Biokhemil
Varadarams Silks, Folds Samy Pvt. Lad., Wi ion Shocs Pyt Ltd, Zeroza E-Commerce Private Limited, Osiva Technologics, Encephalon IT
Services, Vape empire india private limited, Zfambs India Ope Private Limited, Excel Rasayan Private Limited, Emirate Fashions Pyt Ltd, Thulaam|
Solutions, Dhiganth Retail Pyt Ltd, Recham Online Services Pyt Ltd, Madskull Online Private Limited, Axios clathing pvt Itd, GB Online Pyt Lid. |
Brew Brothers Pvi. ltd., Lalu Baby Cloth Diapers Pvt Lid, Stormlight Technologies Put, Lid, Jacked To Play, Eleganteef (OPC) Private Limited, D19
Foods & Beverages Pvt Lid, Airfiber Technologies Private Limited, ARSH Wardrabes Pyt Ltd, House OF Paws Pyt Lid,, Oopla E-Commerce Pyt Ltd,|
Procrafts Onling Pvt Ltd, Viser Digitech Pyt Ltd., Tectotron Private Limited, Viatrix Retails Pvt Ltd, Peacilboxshop, Relygn Technologics Pvi Lid,
XPO Business, SKAY EMCO Toals India Pvt. Ltd., Sharma Reliant Pyt Lté,, Umale Enterprises India Private Limited and BangKart InfoServices Pyt
Lud.

Customer Balance in
Wallet 0.01 0.05

Adventium Business solutions pvt lid, Rollic Lifestyle Py, Lid . Shrutis] Publications and Bguobe Inf Pyt Lid Trade Reccivables 0.00 0.00

i) The Company does nat have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtwal Currency during the financial year.

v) The Company have not advanced or loancd or invested funds to any other personis) or entitylics), including forcign entities (L diaries) with the ling that the i diary shall :

a) directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate B or
b) provide any guarantee, sccurity of the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

+i) The company have nat received any fund from auy p (s) or entitylics), including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall :
a) directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Bencficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantce, scourity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

vii) The Company docs nat have any such ion which is not ded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(such as, search or survey o any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

wiii} The Company has not been dectared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial i or g or any &

i) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023

x) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employ and post-cmpl benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020, However, the date on which the Code will come
into effect has not been notificd. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.

xi) The Company has maintained proper books of account as required by law exeept for the August'22 MCA natification first year for which the company is implementing wherein it does not have servers physically located in
India for the daily backup in relation 1o its accounting software, However, the company have backups of its icing an servers maintained in India, Further, subsequent to the year-end, the Company i in the process
of establishing mechanism for taking daily back-up of its accounting software in a server physically located i India.

Subscquent to the year cnded March 31, 2023, the board of directors of the company, in the meeting held on August 29, 2023 has app 1 a composite scheme of 2 under secticn 230 to 232 and other applicable
provision of the Companics Act 2013 between the conpany ("Transferce Company”) and Pickrr Technologics Private Limited ("Transferar Company™), a subsidiary of the company and their respective sharcholders and

creditors (*Scheme®). The scheme inter-alia provides for the Share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger being 48,267 (Forty-Eight Thousand Two Hundred and Sixty-Seven) Non-C P
Shares of Transferce Company having face value of INR 100 cach fully paid up shall be issued for every 10 (Ten) equity shares held in Transferor Company having face value of TNR 10 each fully paid up.

The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2023 or such other date as may be determined by the Board of Dircctars of Transferee Company and Transferor Company or such other date as may be fixed ot approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) or such other competent authority, The scheme is subject to receipt of regulatary and other approvals inter-alia approvals from NCLT, Sharcholders, creditors and others, as may be
applicable

Subscquent to the year ended March 31, 2023, the board of directors of the company, as a part of internal restructuring in the meeting held on August 29, 2023 has p principal approval of the company's ("Transft
Company") plans 10 acquire the technolopy based platfirm solution from Wigzo Technologies Private Limited (“Transferor Company™), a subsidiary of the company on going concern basis by way of & Slump Sale for a lump
sum consideration, in compl with the provi of Section 508 read with Section 2(42C) of the Incaime Tax Act, 1961, The company is in the process of formalising the plan and other terms and conditions associated
with the said execution
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46 There are numerous interpretative issucs relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019, The company is already in compliance with said order for the year. However, there is
uncertainty on the determination of the liability pectively, because th ically there is no limit on how much retrospective it can get, and can begin from the of eperations of the company. The company
will only record a provision. on reeeiving Further clarity on the subject,

47 Previous year's figures have been regrouped | reclassed wherever necessary to confinm to current vear's classification.
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